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Staff Summary A-45-2021
Subject: FAMIS Maintenance/Support Date: June 24,2021
(ROIT21000119)
Department: Department of Shared Services/ Vendor Name: Cogsdale Corporation
Office of Purchasing
Department Head Name: Melissa Gallucci Contract Number: A-45-2021

Depaww Eigﬂﬁlmjm Contract Manager Name: Kimberly Stanton

Proposed Legislative Action Internal Approvals
To Date | Approva | Info Other Date & Approval | Date & Approval
1 Inity Init.

Assgn . V Dept. Head |
Comm \ I I

Rules Comm Budget AR NOMAM,_; | County Atty.
Full Leg Deputy C.E. #5141 [4}]4.County Exec.

S A A
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Purpose: To authorize and award a purchase order for FAM1S Maintenance/Support contract renewal for the
Nassau County Department of Information Technology.

Discussion: This request is for a sole source purchase; Cogsdale Corporation owns the software, copyrighted under
Copyright Act of 1976, 17 U.S.C. This is the annual renewal of the FAMIS Maintenance/Support extended

maintenance and support contract from 07/01/2020 to 06/30/2021 covering technical support services from Monday
through Friday, excluding Federal and documented company holidays, 8:30 A.M. to 5:30 P.M. ET.

Impact on Funding: The maximum amount authorized under this purchase order shall be Ome Hundred Twenty-

Four Thousand Eight Hundred Seventy-One Dollars and Fifty-Four Cents ($124,871.54.) from General Funds
(ITGEN1100/DE5AS).

Recommendation: Department of Shared Services, Office of Purchasing recom
to Cogsdale Corporation. as the sole source provider. e
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RULES RESOLUTION 2021

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COMMISSIONER OF SHARED SERVICES
TO AWARD AND EXECUTE A PURCHARSE ORDER BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF
NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION

TECHNOLOGY AND COGSDALE CORPORATION.

WHEREAS, the NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF SHARED SERVICES, OFFICE OF

PURCHASING is representing to the Rules Committee, that the proposed award to Cogsdale Corporation

is a sole source provider and meets all specifications for the product described in the said contract as

determined by the Commissioner of Shared Services.

RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County Legislatare authorizes the
Commissioner of Shared Services to award and execute the said Purchase Order with Cogsdale

Corporation.



COUNTY OF NASSAU

INTER — DEPARTMENTAIL MEMO

TO: CLERK OF THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE A-45-2021

FROM:  MELISSA GALLUCCI - COMMISSIONER OF SHARED SERVICES
DATE:  June 25, 2021
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION- DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

THIS RESOLUTION IS RECOMMENDED BY THE COMMISSIONER OF SHARED SERVICES

TO AUTHORIZE AN AWARD AND TO EXECUTE A PURCHASE ORDER IN THE AMOUNT OF
ONE HUNDRED TWENTY-FOUR THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED SEVENTY-ONE DOLLARS
and FIFTY-FOUR CENTS ($124,871.54) ON BEHALF OF THE DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY TO COGSDALE CORPORATION FOR FAMIS MAINTENANCE /SUPPORT
CONTRACT RENEWAL.

THEVABOVE DESCRIBED DOCUMENT ATTACHED HERETO IS FORWARDED FOR YOUR
REVIEW AND APPROVAL AND SUBSEQUENT TRANSMITTAL TO THE RULES COMMITTEE

FOR INCLUSION IN ITS AGENDA.
Waﬂaﬂg@a(

MELISSA GALLUCCI
COMMISSIONER OF SHARED SERVICES

VB: gb .
ENCL: (1) STAFF SUMMARY
{(2) DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
(3) RESOLUTION
(4) BID SUMMARY
(5) BID PROPOSAL

(6) CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
(7) RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD
(8) POLITICAL CONTRIBUTION FORM




COUNTY OF NASSAU
POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Has the vendor or any corporate officers of the vendor provided campaign contributions pursuant to the New York
State Election Law in {a} the period beginning April 1, 2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b}, beginning
April 1, 2018, the period beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this
disclosure, to the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected offiicials or fo the campaign
committess of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the: County Executive, the County
Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Ledislator?

YES | |NO | X [1lfyes, to what campaign committee?

2. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregeing statements and they are, to
his/her knowledge, true and accurate.,

The undersigned further ceriifies and affirms that the contribution{s) to the campaign commitiees jdentified above were
made freely and without duress, threat or any promise of a governmental benefit or in exchange for any benefit or
remuneration.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Chris Plant [CPLANT@COGSDALE.COM]

Dated: 04/27/2021 01:20:00 PM Vendor: C. Plant

Title: Director, Customer Success
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COUNTY OF NASSAU
LOBBYIST REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name, address and telephone number of lobbyisi(s)/lobbying organization. The term "lobbyist” means any and every
person or organization retained, employad or designated by any client to influence - or promote a matter before -
Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, legislators or committees, including but not
limited to the Open Space and Parks Adviscry Committee and Planning Commission. Such matters include, but are not
limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real property subject to County reguiation,
procurements. The term "lobbyist" does not include any officer, director, trustee, employee, counsel or agent of the
County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties,

NONE

2. List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau Counly, New York State):

NONE

3. Name, address and telephone number of client{s) by whorn, or on whose behalf, the lobbyist is retained, employed
or designated:

- NONE

4. Describe lobbying activity conduclad, or to be conducted, in Nassau County, and identify client(s) for each activity
listed. See the last page for a complete description of lobbying activities.

NONE

5. The name of persons, organizations or governmental entities before whom the lobbyist expects to lobby:

NONE - .

6. If such lobbyist is retained or employed pursuant to a written agreement of retalner or employment, you must attach
a copy of such document; and if agreement of retainer or employment is cral, attach a written statement of the
substance thereof. If the written agreement of retainer or employment dees not contain a signed authorization from the
client by whom you have been authorized to lobby. separately attach such a written authorization from the client,
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7. Has the lobbyist/lobbying organization or any of its corperate officers provided campaign contributions pursuant to

. the New York State Election Law in {a)} tha period beginning April 1, 2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or
(b), beginning Aprif 1, 2018, the period beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of
this disclosure, to the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign
comnittees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County Executive, the County
Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator?

YES | NO [ X | If yes, to what campaign committes? If none, you must so state:

| understand that coptes of this form wili be sent to the Nassau County Department of Information Technology ("IT") to
be posted on the County's website.

| also understand that upon termination of retainer, employment or designation | must give written notice to the County
Attomey within thirty (30) days of termination.

VERIFICATICON: The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing
statements and they are, to hisfher knowledge, frue and accurate.

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign committees listed above were

made freely and without duress. threat or any promise of a governmental benefit or in exchange for any benefit or
remuneration.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Chiis Plant [CPLANT@COGSDALE.COM]

Dated:  06/03/2021 03:34:29 PM Vendor: Cogsdale Corporation

Title: Director, Customer Success
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau Gounty Legislature,

“or any-member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local legislation or
resolution; any determination by the County Exscutive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any local legislation
or resolution, whether or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an
elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement of goods, services or
construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including by not limited to the preparation of requests
for proposals, or solicitation, award or administration of a centract or with respect to the solicitation, award or
administration of a grant, loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any determination made by
the County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, commissions department
heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee, the Planning
Commission with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation,
or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to requests for proposals,
bidding, procurement or contracting for servicses for the County; any determination made by an elected county official or
an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the acquisition or disposition by the county of any
interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real property of or by the county, or with
respect to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or rejection by an agency
of any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any rate making proceeding
before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission; any determination regarding the
calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing; the issuance, repeal, modification or substance of a County
Executive Order; or any determination made by an elected county official or an officer or employee of the county to
support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any determination made to support or
oppose that is contingent on any ameandment of such legislation, rule or regulation, whether or not such legislation has
been formally introduced and whether or not such rule or regulation has been formally proposed.

The term "lobbying” or "lobbying activities” does not include: Persons engaged in drafting legislation, rules,
regulations or rates; persons advising clients and rendering opinions on proposed legislation, rules, regulations or rates,
where such professional services are not otherwlse connected with legislative or executive action on such legislation or
administrative action on such rules, regulations or rates; newspapers and other petiodicals and radio and television
stations and owners and employees thereof, provided that their activities in connection with proposed legislation, nules,
regulations or rates are limited to the publication or broadcast of news items, editorials or other comment, or paid
advertisements; persons who participate as witnesses. attorneys or other representatives in public rule-making or rate-
making proceedings of a County agency, with respect to ail participation by such persons which is part of the public
record thereof and all preparation by such persons for such participation; persons who attempt to influence a County
agency in an adjudicatory proceeding, as defined by § 102 of the New York State Administrative Procedure Act.
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who hold a fen percent
(10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewtitten or printed in ink. If you need more space to
answer any guestion, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page({s) as necessary and attach them to the
questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A COMPLETE

QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE

AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1.

4.

Principal Name: Todd Qhman

Date of birth: 08/18/1970

Home address: 47 Waterside Dr.

City: Carleton Place State/Province/Territory:  ON Zip/Postal Code: KY7C 0B1
Country: CA

Business Address: 1 Antares Dr.

City: Ottawa State/Province/Territory: ON Zip/Postal Code: _K2E 8C4
Country CA

Telephone: 6138828633

Other present address(es);

City: State/Prevince/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:

Country:

Telephons:

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each {check all applicable)

President Treasurer

Chairtman of Board Shareholder

Chief Exec. Officer Secretary

Chief Financial Officer Partner

\ice President

{Other)

Type Description Start Date
Other Executive Vice President 01/04/2021

Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES [ [NO [ X |IfYes, provide details.

Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any other type of

contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?

YES | |NO [ X ]I Yes, provide details.
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5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal ownet or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization
other than the one submitting the questionnaire?

YES | |NO [ X |If Yes, provide detalls.

B. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?

YES | | NO [ X |IfYes, provide details.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response 1o all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire,

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affilialed businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal awner or officer:
a, Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?
YES | |NO [ X_] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts
cancelled for cause?
YES | |NO [ X | Ifyes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.
|
C. Bean denied the award of a contract and/or the oppertunity to bid on a contract, including, but not

limited to, fallure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X 11f yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action

taken.
|
d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; andfor is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwize affect such business's ability to bid or propose on
contract?
YES NO ( X | If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken,
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8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed In response to Question 5 filed a bankruptey petition and/or
been the subject of involuntary bankruptey proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any pottion of the
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initlated more than 7
years ago andfor is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptey proceedings, whenever
initiated?
YES | | NO [ X | If'Yes', provide details for each such Instance. {Provide a detalled response to
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the
guestionnaire.)

9,

a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES | | NO [ X | Kyes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.
l

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?

YES | | NO | X | Ifyes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.
I

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?

YES NO [ X | If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken,
| -

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, afier trial or by plea, of any feleny, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness ar the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of
business? Y
YES | | NO [ X ] Ifyes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action

| taken.

e. in the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?

YES NO X | If yes, provide an explanaticn of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.
1

f. In the past 5 years, have you bsan found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES |NO [ X | Ifyes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.
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10.  In addition to the information provided in response te the previous guestions, in the past 5 years, have you
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a clvil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related
to activities performed at, for, or on bahalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affillated business listed
in response to Question 57
YES ‘ NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and cotrective action taken.

l |

11.  In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response
to Quuestion 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory
agencies while you wers a principal owner or officer?

YES | |NO [ X | Ifyes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12.  Inthe past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5
had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional
license held?

_YES | NO X | fyes, provids an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken,
I |

13.  For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax raturns or falled to pay any applicable federal,
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES | |NO | X | |liyes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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[, | Todd Ohman | , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

|, | Todd Ohman | , hereby certify that | have read and understand all the
items contained in this form; that 1 supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my
knowledge, information and belief; that | will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring
after the submission of this form; and that zll information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge,
information and belief. 1 understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional
inducement to enter Into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

Cogsdale

Name of submitting business

Flectronically signed and ceitified at the date and time indicated by:
Todd Ohman [TOHMAN@COGSDALE.COM)

Executive Vice President

Title

02/03/2021 04:26:22 PM

Date
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Business Hisfory Form

The contract shall be awarded to the rasponsible proposer who, at the discretion of the County, taking into
consideration the reliability of the proposer and the capadcity of the proposer to perform the services reqguired by the
County, offers the best value to the County and who will best promote the public interest.

In addition to the submission of proposals, each proposer shall complete and submit this questionnaire. The
questionnaire shall be fillad cut by the owner of a sole proprietorship or by an authorized representative of the firm,
corporation or partnership submitting the Proposal.

NOTE: All questions require a response, even If respense is "none" or "not-applicable." No blanks,

{USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TO FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS).

Date: 04/28/2021

1) Proposer's Legal Name: Cogsdale Corporation

2) Address of Place of Business: 1 Antares Drive, Suite 400

City: Ottawa State/Province/Territory: ON Zip/Postal Code: K2E 8C4
~ Country: _CA

Address: 3 Lower Malpeque Roa

City: Charlottetown State/ProvincefTerritory: Zip/Pestal Code:

Country: CA

Start Date: End Date: 01-JUL-21
[

3 Mailing Address (if different):

City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country:
Phone:
Does the business own or rent its facilities?  Rent If other, please provide details:
| ]
4) Pun and Bradstreet number: _naone
5) Federal 1.D. Number: 980363498
5] The proposer is a: _Corporation (Describa)
73 Does this business share office space, staff, or equipment expenses with any other business?
YES | | NO [ X | Ifyes, please provide details:
|

8) Does this business control ona or more other businesses?
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YES | | NO [ X | Ifyes, please provide details;
|

9) Does this business have one or more affiliates, and/or is it a subéidiary of, or controlled by, any other business?
YES [ X |NO | | If yes, please provide details:

| Owned and Controlied by N. Harris Computer System, which is a subsidiary of Constellation Software, Inc.

2 File(s) Uploaded: CSI org.pdf, q1-2020-shareholder-report.pdf

10}  Has the proposer ever had a bond or surely cancelled or forfelted, or a contract with Nassau County or any
other government entity terminated?
YES | | NO [ _X_] Ifyes, state the name of bonding agency, (if a bond), date, amount of bond
and reason for such cancellation or forfeiture: or details regarding the termination {if a contract).

11)  Has the proposer, during the past seven years, been declared bankrupt?

YES NO X | If yes, state date, court jurisdiction, ameunt of liabilities and amount of assets
I

12)  In the past five years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business,
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local
prosecuting or investigative agency? Andfor, in the past 5 years, have any owner and/or officer of any affiliated
business been the subject of a criminal investigaticn and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or
local prosecuting or investigative agency, where such investigation was related to activities performed at, for, or
on behalf of an affiliated business.

YES | | NO [ X_] Ifyes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
gircumstances and corrective action taken.

13) Inthe past 5 years, has this business andfor any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and
local regulatory agencies? And/or, in the past § years, has any owner and/or officer of an affiliated business
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not fimited to federal, state and
local regulatory agencies, for matters pertaining to that individual's position at or relationship to an affiliated
business.

YES | | NO [ X ] If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

14y  Has any current or former director, owner or officer or managerial employee of this business had, either before
or during such person's employment, or since such employment if the charges pertained to events that
allegedly occurred during the time of employment by the submitting business, and allegedly related to the
conduct of that business:
a) Any felony charge pending?
YES [ | NO | X | Ifyes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.
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b) Any misdemeanor charge pending?
YES NO X | I yes, provide detalls for each such investigation, an explanation of the
gircumstances and corrective action taken.

¢} In the past 10 years, you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony and/or any other crime, an
element of which relates to fruthfuliness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of business?
YES | | NO [ X | If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

dy In the past 5 years, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO | X | Ifyes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
dreumstances and corrective action taken.

e) In the past 5 years, been found in violation of any administrative, statutory, or regulatory provisions?
YES | | NO [ X ] Ifyes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and correctlve action taken.

15)  Inthe past {5) years, has this business or any of its owners or officers, or any other affiliated business had any
sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any profegsional license
held?

YES [ NO X | If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action faken.

16)  For the past (5) tax years, has this business failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable
federal, state or local taxes or othar assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES | | NO [ X | If yes, provide datails for each such year. Provide a detailed response to all
guestions checked "YES'. If you need more space, photocepy the appropriate page and attach it to the
guestionnaire.

17 Conflict of Interest:

: a) Please disclose any conflicts of interest as outlined below. NOTE: If no conflicts exist, please expressly
state "No conflict exists."
(i) Any material financial relationships that your firm or any firm employee has that may create a conflict
of interast or the appearance of a conilict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.

| 'No conflict exists'

{iy Any family relationship that any employee of your firm has with any County public servant that may
create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau
County.
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[ 'No conflict exists’

(i} Any cthér matter that your firm believes may create a confiict of interest or the appearance of a
conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.

[ 'No conflict exists’

b) Please describe any procedures your firm has, or would adopt, fo assure the County that a conflict of
interest would not exist for your firm in the future.

We ensure that every employee has read and signed our Code of Conduct policy, and our Employee
Handhook!/ Conflict of Interest Policy,

Al Include a resume or detailed description of the Proposer's professional qualifications, demonstrafing extensive
experience in your profession. Any prior similar experiences, and the results of these experiences, must be
identified.

Have you previously uploaded the below information under in the Document Vault?
YES | |NO | X |

Is the proposer an individual?
YES | NO Should the proposear be other than an individual, the Proposal MUST include:

)] Date of formation;
(0170171997 |

iy  Name, addresses, and position of all persons having a financial interest in the company, including
shareholders, members, general or limited partner. If hone, explain.

Cogsdale is a Corporation and is a subsidiary of N. Hatris Computer Systems, therefore Cogsdale does
not have a person with a financial interest in the company

No individuals with a financial interest in the company have been aftached..

i) Name, address and positioh of all officers and directors of the company. If none, explain.

[ Todd Ohman, Executive Vice President, 1 Antares Drive, Suite 400, Ottawa, Ontario, Canada

No officers and directors from this company have besn attached.

iv) State of incorporation (if applicable);

V) | The number of employees in the firm;
96 ]

vi) _Annual revenue of firm;
| 13000000 |

vil}  Summary of relevant accomplishments
| We have been in business for 24 years and have many satisfied customers. |
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viil)  Caoples of all state and local licenses and permits.

B. Indicate number of years in business.

[ 24

C. Provide any other information which wouid be appropriate and helpful in determining the Proposer's capacity
and reliahility to perform these services.

[ 24 Years of Business experience.

D. Provide names and addresses for no fewer than three references far whom the Proposer has provided similar
services of who are qualified to evaluate the Proposer's capability to perform this work.

Company City of Philadelphia

Contact Person _David Mauro

Address 1234 Market St, Suite 1500

City Philadelphia State/Province/Territory  PA
Country Us

Telephone (215) 686-5914

Fax #

E-Mail Address _david.mauro@phila.gov

Company Miami-Dade County

Contact Person Connie Whites

Address 111 NW 1st ST. Suite 2000

City Mlami State/Province/Territory  FL
Country us

Telephone (305) 375-3738

Fax #

E-Mail Address _connie.white@miamidade.gov

Company City of Fort Lauderdale

Contact Person _lan Wint

Address 33 FOLGER AVE

City Beverly State/Province/Territory  MA
Country us B

Telephone (854) 828-8332

Fax #

E-Mail Address _iwini@fortlauderdale.gov
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I, | Chris Plant |, hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/for
any affillated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, [ Chris Plant |, hereby certify that | have read and undersiand all the
items contained in this form; that | supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my
knowledge, informafion and belief; that | will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring after
the submission of this form; and that ali information supplied by me is frue to the best of my knowledge, information
and belief. | understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional inducement to
enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID CR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES,

Name of submitting business: Cogsdale Cerp Inc

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Chris Plant [CPLANT@COGSDALE.COM]

Director, Customer Success

Title

06/25/2021 12:38:46 PM

Date
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of Constellation Software Inc.
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Constellation Software Inc. {“the

Entity”}, which comprise:

* the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2020 and December
31, 2019

» the consolidated statements of income for the years then ended

s the consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the years then ended

+ the consolidated statements of changes in equity for the years then ended

* the consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then ended

s and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies

{Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanyihg financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Entity as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and its
consolidated financial perfcrmance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted audifing standards. Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements” section of our auditors’ report.

Woe are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professionat judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated
in our auditors’ report.

Detsrmination of distinct professional services performance obligation in customer contracts containing
muftiple performance obfigations and estimation of hours to complete for certain percentage-of-
completion (POC) arrangemsents

Description of the matfer

We draw attention to Notes 2(d) and 3(k) to the financial statements. The Enfity has recognized revenue
of $3,969 million. A portion of revenue is associated with contracts that contain multiple products and
services such as software licenses, maintenance and other recurring, professionatl services, and
hardware. The Entity uses significant judgment to assess whether professional services sold in a
customer contract are considered distinct and should be accounted for as separate performance
obligations. Revenue from the license of software that involves complex implementation or customization
that is not distinct, and/or includes sales of hardware that is not distinct, is recognized as a combined
performance obligation using the percentage-of-completion method based primarily on labour hours. The
Entity applies significant judgment to determine the estimated hours to completion which affects the timing
of revenue recognized for professional services and non-distinct license and/or hardware.

Why the matter is the key audit matter

We identified the determination of distinct professional services performance obligation in customer
contracts containing multiple performance obligations and the estimation of hours to complete far certain
POC arrangements, being contracts where revenue recognition is based on estimated hours to
completion, as a key audit matter. Significant auditor judgment was required to evaluate the Entity's
significant judgements of whether professicnal services are distinct or non-distinct and the estimated
hours to completion for arrangements that are completed over an extended period. There was significant
auditor effort, involving mere senior professionals, required to address this matter.

How the matter was addressed in the audit
The primary procedures we perfarmed to address this key audit matter included the following:

We evaluated the design, and tested the operating effectiveness of certain controls over revenue
recognition including controls related to the Entity's process to identify distinct professional services
performance obligations in customer confracts and contrals over the estimation of hours to complete for
POC arrangements, inclusive of executed contract amendments and change orders.

For a selection of new customer coniracts, we assessed the Entity’s determination of distinct/non-distinct
professional services performance obligations, if any, by examining the contract source documents,
comparing to the Entity’s past assessments for simitar contracts, and practices observed in the Entity's
industry.

For a selection of POC arrangements where revenue recognition is based on the estimated hours to
completion, we interviewed operational personnel responsible for the contract. We obtained an
understanding of the ariginal estimated hours to completion and any increase or decrease to the
estimated hours to completion as the contract progresses and inspected correspondence such as project
planning documents and change requests, if any, between the Entity and its customers.

In addition, we assessed the Entity’s historical ability to accurately estimate hours to complete by
performing an analysis of a selection of completed contracts to compare actual hours incurred upon
compiletion to the initial estimated hours to completion.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises:

s  Management’s Discussion and Analysis filed with the relevant Canadian Securities
Commissions.

Our opinion on the financial statements dees not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the ather information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit and remain alert for indications that the other
information appears to be materially misstated.

We obtained the information included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis filed with the relevant
Canadian Securities Commissions as at the date of this auditors’ report.  If, based on the work we have
performed on this ather information, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact in the auditors’ report.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management delermines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Entity's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and o issue an auditors’ report that
includes our apinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit,
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We also:

-»

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal confrol.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
esfimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity's ability to continue as a going concem.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to madify our apinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the averall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Entity to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Determine, from the matters communicated with those charged with governance, those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our auditors’ report because the

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication,

KFns ¥

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this auditors’ report is Brendan Gerard Maher.

Toronto, Canada
February 12, 2021



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

(In millions of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts. Due to rounding, numbers presented may not foot.)

December 31, 2020

December 31, 2019

Assets
Current assets:
Cash 5 758 316
Accounts receivable 483 422
Unbilled revenue 98 110
Inventories (note &) 27 31
Other assets (note 6) 219 184
1,585 1,082
Non-current assets:
Property and equipment {note 7) 86 78
Right of use assets (note 8) 251 234
Defarred income taxes (note 17) 52 45
Other assets (note 6) 75 72
Intangible assets (note 9) 2,325 1,997
2,790 2,425
Total assets 3 4,375 3,488
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
CSl facility (note 10} $ - 63
Debt without recourse to Constellation Software Inc. (note 11) 28 57
T3S membership Tliakility (note 13) 113 86
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 666 529
Dividends payable {note 18) 21 21
Deferred revenue 962 788
Provisions {(note 14) 12 13
Acquisition holdback payables 85 76
Lease obligations {note 15) 74 62
Income faxes payable (note 18) 78 36
2,040 1,732
Non-current liabilities:
Debt without recourse to Constellation Software Inc. (note 11) 199 153
T8S membership liability (note 13) 198 136
Debentures (note 12} 223 222
Deferred income taxes (hote 17) 285 246
Acquisition holdback payables 37 25
Lease cbligations (note 15) 201 187
Other liahilities (note 8) 146 101
1,288 1,068
Total liabilities 3,328 2,800
Shareholders' equity (note 18);
Capital stock 99 99
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (31) (40)
Retained earnings 980 628
1,048 6587
Subsequent events (notes 18 and 29)
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 4375 % 3,488

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Consclidated Statements of Income

{In miltions of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts. Due to rounding, numbers presented may not

foot.)
Years ended December 31,
2020 2019
Revenue
License 234 % 226
Professional services 751 6873
Hardware and other 169 173
Mainfenance and other recurring 2,815 2,417
3,969 3,490
Expenses
Staff 2,050 1,797
Hardware 97 101
Third party license, maintenance and professional services 330 300
Ceccupancy 35 35
Travel, telecommunications, supplies, software and equipment 152 201
Professional fees 80 49
Qther, net 13 73
Depreciation (notes 7 and 8) 105 92
Amortization of intangible assets {note 8) 403 331
3,246 2,979
Foreign exchange loss (gain) 2 11
TSS membership liability revaluation charge (note 13) 85 52
Finance and other expense (income) {ncte 19) (4) (4)
Bargain purchase gain (note 4) (2) (45)
Impairment of intangible and other non-financial assets {note @} 12 -
Finance cecsts (note 19) 46 42
120 55
Income before income taxes 603 458
Current income tax expense (recovery) 221 164
Deferred income tax expanse (recovery) (55) {41
Income tax expense {recovery) 167 123
Net income 436 333
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted {note 20} 20.59 3 15.73

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
{In millions of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts. Due fo rounding, numbers presented may not foot.)

Years ended December 31,

2020 2019
Net income $ 436 $ 333
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to net income:
Foreign currency translation differences from foreign operations and other 9 4
Other comprehensive incdme (loss) for the period, net of income tax 9 4)
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the period $ 445 $ 330

See accompanying notes fo the consclidated financial statements.



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE [NC.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

{In milllons of L.5. dollars, axcapt per share emounts. Due to rounding, numbers presented may not foot.)

Year ended Becember 31, 2020

Capltal stock  Accumulatad other comprehensive Retained earnings Total
Income {loss)
Cumulative translation account and other
Balance at January 1, 2020 $ 99 § (40) $ 628 $ 887
Totaf comprehensive income for the petiod:
Net income - - 436 436
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Foraign currency translation differences from
foreign operations and other - ] - 9
Total other comprehensive incoms {loss)
for the pariod - 9 - 9
Total comprehensive income {loss) for the period - 9 436 445
Transactions wilh owners, recorded directly in equity
Dividends to shareholders of the Company (note 18) - - {85) (85)
Balance at Dacember 31, 2020 $ 99 $ i31) § 080 % 1,048

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Conselidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(In millions of U.S. dellars, except per share amounts. Due to rounding, numbers presented may not foot.}

Year ended December 31, 2018

Capital stock  Accumulated other comprehensive Retained eamings Total
income {loss)
Cumulative translation account and other
Balance at January 1, 2019 $ a9 37) & 804 $ 866
Total comprehensive income for the petiod:
Net inceme - - 333 333
Other comprehensive income (foss)
Foreign currency franslation differences from
forelgn operations and other - (4) - 4)
Total other comprehensive income (loss} for the periad - (4) - (4)
Total comprehensive Income {loss) for the parlod - {4) 333 330
Transactions with owners, recorded direclly In squity
Dividends to shareholders of the Company (note 18) - - {508) (509)
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 89 (40) $ 628 § 887

See accompanying nates lo tha consclidaied financial statements.



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
{In millions of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts. Due to rounding, numbers presented may not foot.)

Years ended December 31,

2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income 3 436 $ 333
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 105 92
Amortization of intangible assets 403 331
TSS membership liability revaluation charge 65 52
Finance and other expense (income) (4) (4)
Bargain purchase (gain) (2) (45)
Impairment of intangible and other non-financial assets 12 -
Finance costs 46 42
Income tax expense (recovery) 167 123
Foreign exchange loss {gain) 2 1
Change in non-cash operating assets and liabilities
exclusive of effects of business combinations (note 27) 17 (28)
Income taxes paid (162) (140)
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities 1,186 767
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Interest paid on lease obligations (8} {7}
Interest paid on other facilities (32) 31
Increase {decrease) in CSl facility (65} 85
Increase (decrease) in revolving credit under debt facilities without recourse to CSlI (31) 5
Proceeds from issuance of term debt under facilities without recourse to CSI 48 49
Repayments of term debt under facilities without recourse to CSI (6) (2)
Credit facility transaction costs (2) 3
Payments of lease obligations (66) {51)
Distribution to TSS minority owners {note 13} - (11)
Dividends paid {85) {509)
Net cash flows from (used in) in financing activities (247) {485)
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Acquisition of businesses (hote 4) (477) (549)
Cash obtained with acquired businesses (note 4) a7 118
Post-acquisition seflement payments, nat of receipts {105} (74}
Purchases of other investments (4) 1
Interest, dividends and other proceeds received 2 6
Property and equipment purchased (25) (34)
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities (512) (544)
Effect of foreign currency on
cash and cash equivalenis 15 1
Increase (decrease) in ¢cash 442 (273)
Cash, beginning of period 316 589
Cash, end of period 3 758 $ 316

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financia! statements.



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

{In millions of U.S. dcllars, except per share amounts and as otherwise indicated.)
{Due to rounding, numbers presented may not foot.)

Years ended December 31, 2020 and 2012

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1.  Reporting entity 16. Income taxes

2. Basis of presentation 17. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

3.  Significant accounting policies 18. Capital and other components of equity

4, Business acquisitions 19. Finance and cther expense (income) and finance costs
5. Inventories 20. Earnings per share

6.  Other assets and liabilities 21. Capital risk management

7. Property and equipment 22. Financial risk management and financial instruments
8. Right of use assets 23. Revenue

9. Intangible assets and goodwill 24, Operating segments

10.  CSl facility 25. Contingencies

11.  Debt without recourse to CSI 26. Guarantees

12. Debentures 27. {Changes in non-cash operating working capital

13.  TSS membership liability 28. Related parties

14.  Provisions 7 29, Subsequent events

15. Lease obligations



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

{In millions of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts and as otherwise indicated.)
{Due fo rounding, numbers presented may not foot.)

Years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

1. Reporting entity

Constellation Software Inc. {"Constellation™) is a company domiciled in Canada. The address of Constellation's
registered office is 20 Adelaide Street East, Suite 1200, Toronto, COntario, Canada. The consolidated financial
statements of Constellation as at and for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019
comprise Constellation and its subsidiaries {together referred to as the "Company”) and the Company's interest in
associates. The Company is engaged principally in the development, installation and customization of software as
well as in the provisioning of related professional services and support for customers globally across over 100
diverse markets.

2. Basis of presentation
{a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS"), issued and outstanding as of February 12, 2021, the date the Board of Directors approved such
financial statements:.

(b} Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain assets and
liabilities initially recognized in conneclion with business combinations, and certain financial instruments and
derivative financial instruments, which are measured at fair value.

{c) Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars, which is Constellation's functional currency.

(d) Use of estimates and judgements

The praparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Estimates are based on historical
experience and other assumptions that are considered reasonable in the circurmstances. The actual amount or
values may vary in certain instances from the assumptions and estimates made. Changes will be recorded, with
corresponding effect in profit or loss, when, and if, better information is obtained.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following notes:

Note 3(k) - Revenue recognition
Note 3(a){i} - Business combinations
Note 3(m) - Income taxes
Note 3(i) - Impairment

Note 3{d) - Intangible assels

Note 13 - TSS membership liability



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Nctes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{In millions of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts and as otherwise indicated.)
{Due to rounding, numbers presented may not foot.)

Years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Note 25 - Contingencies

Critical judgements that the Company has made in the process of applying accounting policies disclosed herein
and that have a significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements relate to the
(i) determination of functional currencies for Constellation’s subsidiaries and, most notably, in respect of
businesses acquired during the period; (ii) assessment as to whether professional services in multiple-
performance obligation arrangements are distinct of other performance obligations and determination of the
estimated hours to complete customer contracts accounted for using the percentage of completion method; {iii)
recognition of deferred tax assels; and (iv) recognition of provisions and contingent consideration liabilities.

. Functional currency — the Company applies judgement in situations where primary and secondary
indicators are mixed. Primary indicators such as the currency that mainly influence sales prices are given
priority before considering secondary indicators.

. The Company uses significant judgment to assess whether professional services sold in a customer
contract are considered distinct and should he accounted for as separate performance obligations. Non-
distinct professional services are combined with other goods or services until they are distinct and form a
single performance obligation. The Company also applies significant judgment to determine the estimated
hours to completion which affects the timing of revenue recognized for professional services and non-
distinct license and hardware. Estimated hours to completion are continually and routinely revised based
on changes in the progress of customer contracts.

. Deferred tax assets - the recognition of deferred tax assets is based on forecasts of future taxable profit.
The measurement of future taxable profit for the purposes of determining whether or not to recognize
deferred tax assets depends on many factors, including the Company's ability to generate such profits and
the implementation of effective tax planning strategies. The cccurrence or non-oecurrence of such events
in the future may lead to significant changes in the measurement of deferred tax assets.

. Provisions and contingent consideration liablities - in recognizing provisions, the Company evaluates the
extent to which it is probable that it has incurred & legal or constructive obligation in respect of past events
and the probability that there will be an outflow of benefits as a result. The judgements used to recognize
provisions are based on currently known factors which may vary over time, resuliing in changes in the
measurement of recorded amounts as compared to inifial estimates. Contingent consideration liabilities
are initially recorded on the date of a business combination and is payable on the achievement of certain
financial targets in the post-acquisition periods. The obligation for contingent consideration is recorded at
its estimated fair value at the various acquisition dates and is recorded at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The estimated fair value of the applicable contingent consideration is calculated using the
estimated financial outcome and resuliing expected contingent consideration to be paid and inclusion of a
discount rate as appropriate

The Company is closely monitoring the impact of COVID-19 on all aspects of its business. COVID-19 was declared
a global pandemic by the World Health Crganization on March 11, 2020. The COVID-19 pandemic has had
disruptive effects in countries in which the Company operates and has adversely impacted many of its business
units’ operations to date, including through the cancellation by certain customers of their ongoing software
maintenance contracts and the suspension or cancellation of new software purchases. The pandemic may also
have an adverse impact on many of the Company’s customers, including their ability to satisfy ongcing payment
abligations to the Company, which could increase the Company’s bad debt exposure. The future impacts of the
pandemic and any resulting economic impact are largely unknown and rapidly evolving. 1t is possible that the
COVID-19 pandemic, the measures taken by the gevernments of countries affected and the resulting economic
impact may continue o adversely affect the Company’s results of operations, cash flows and financial position as
well as its customers in future periods, and this impact could be material. During the year ended December 31,
9



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Notes to Consoclidated Financial Statements

{In millions of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts and as otherwise indicated.)
{Due to rounding, numbers presented may not foot.)

Years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020, the Company recorded income of $41 relating to government grants from varicus government authorities
relating to the pandemic. The Company has recorded the income for the year ended December 31, 2020 of $41
within “Other, net” expenses in the consolidated statements of income.

3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consoclidated
financial statements unless otherwise indicated.

The significant accounting policies have been applied consistently by the Company‘s subsidiaries.
{(a) Basis of consolidation
(i} Business combinations

Acquisitions have been accounted for using the acquisition method required by IFRS 3 Business Combinations.
Goodwill arising on acquisitions is measured as the fair value of the consideration transferred including the
recognized amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, if any, less the net recognized amount of the
estimated fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed (subject to certain exemptions to fair
value measurement principles such as deferred tax assets or liabilities), all measured as of the acquisition date.
When the consideration transferred is less than the estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed,
a bargain purchase gain is recognized immediately in the consolidated statements of income. Transaction costs
that the Company incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

The Company uses its best estimates and assumptions to reasonably value assets and liabilities assumed at the
acquisition date as well as contingent consideration, where applicable, and these estimates are inherently unceriain
and subject to refinement. As a result, during the measurement period, which may be up to one year from the
acquisition date, the Company may record adjustments to the assets acquired and liahilities assumed with a
corresponding offset to goodwill. Upon conclusion of the measurement period or final determination of the values
of assets acquired or liabilities assumed, whichever cormes first, any subsequent adjustments are recorded to profit
or loss. For a given acquisition, the Company may identify certain pre-acquisition contingencies as of the acquisition
date and may extend its review and evaluation of these pre-acquisition contingencies throughout the measurement
period in order to obtain sufficient information to assess these contingencies as part of acquisition accounting, as
applicable.

{ii} Consolidation methods

Entities over which the Company has control are consolidated from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Entities over which the Company has significant influence {investments in "associates") are
accounted for under the equity method. Significant influence is assumed when the Company's interests are 20%
or more, unless qualitative factors overcome this assumption.

Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and
operating policies. Investments in associates are recognized initially at cost, inclusive of transaction costs. The
Company's investment includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment losses. The
consolidated financial statements include the Company's share of the income and expenses and equity changes of
equity accounted investees, from the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant
influence ceases.

10



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{In millions of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts and as otherwise indicated.)
{Due to rounding, numbers presenied may not foot.)

Years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

{iii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-company balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-company
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

(b} Foreign currency translation
(i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of subsidiaries of the
Company at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foresign
currencies af the reporting date are re-measured to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. Foreign
currency differences arising on re-measurement are recognized through profit or loss, except for differences arising
on the retranslation of available-for-sale equity instruments, which are recognized in other comprehensive income.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported in profit and loss on
a net basis. The effect of currency translation adjustments on cash and cash equivalents is presented separately
in the statements of cash flows and separated from investing and financing activities when deemed significant.

(ii) Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operaticns, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition,
are translated to U.S. dollars at exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign
operations are translated to U.S. dollars using average exchange rates for the month during which the transactions
occurred. Foreign currency differences are recognized in other comprehensive income in the cumulative translation
account; however, if the operation is a non-wholly owned subsidiary, then the relevant proportionate share of the
translation difference is allocated to the non-controlling interest when applicable.

Foreign exchange gains or losses arising from a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation,
the settlement of which is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future and which its substance is
considered to form part of the net investment in the foreign operation, are recognized in other comprehensive
income in the cumulative amount of foreign currency translation differences. If, and when, settlement plans change
or deemed likely to oceur, then the accounting process in (b)(i) above is applied. When a foreign operation payable
or receivable classified as a net investment is partially or fully disposed, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is transferred to profit or loss as part of the profit
or loss on disposal. The Company has elected not {o treat repayments of monetary items receivable or payable to
a foreign operation as a disposition.

{c} Financial Instruments

The Company's financial instrumenis comprise cash, accounts receivable, CSI facility, Debt without recourse to
CSl, debenturss, Total Specific Solutions B.V. {("TSS5"}) membership liability, accounis payable and accrued
liabilities, dividends payable, income taxes payable and holdback assets or liabilities on acquisitions.
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(In millions of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts and as otherwise indicated.)
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Years ended December 31, 2020 and 201¢

Financial assets are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position if we have a contractual right to
receive cash or other financial assets from another entity. Financial assets, including accounts receivable, are
derecognized when the rights fo receive cash flows from the investments have expired or were fransfeired to
another party and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities include the CSI facility, Debt without recourse to CSl, TSS membership liability, debentures,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, dividends payable, income taxes payable and holdbacks on acguisitions.
Financial liahilities are generally recognized initially at fair value, typically being transaction price, plus any directly
attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled, or
expired.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the armounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Common shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of common shares are
recognized as a deduction from equity, net of tax.

The Company's derivatives are carried at fair value and are reported as assets when they have a positive fair value
and as liabilities when they have a negative fair value.

Changes in the fair values of derivative financial instruments are reported in the consolidated statements of income,
except for cash flow hedges that meet the conditions for hedge accounting. The portion of the gain or loss on the
hedging instruments that are determined to be an effective hedge are recognized directly in other comprehensive
income, and the ineffective portien in the consolidated statements of income. The gains or losses deferred in other
comprehensive income in this way are subsequently recognized in the consclidated statements of income in the
same period in which the hedged underlying transaction or firm commitment is recognized in the statement of
income. In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Company is required to document in advance the relationship
between the item being hedged and the hedging instrumeni. The Company is also reguired o decument and
demonstrate an assessment of the relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, which shows
that the hedge will be highly effective on an ongoing basis. This effectiveness testing is re-performed at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that the hedge remains highly effective.

{d) Intangible assets
(i) Goodwill

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. After initial recognition,
goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, with the carrying value being reviewed for
impairment at least annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impairad. [n respect of equity accounted investees, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the
carrying amount of the investment.

The impairment test methodaology is based on a comparison between the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value-in-use of each of the Company's cash generating units (*CGU"} and the net asset carrying values (including
goodwill). Within the Company's reporting structure, business units generally reflect the CGU and are one level
below the six operating segments (Volaris, Harris, Total Specific Solutions, Jonas, Perseus, and Vela Operating
Groups). |n determining the recoverable amount, the Company applies an estimated market valuation multiple to
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the business unit's most recent annual recurring revenues, which are generally derived from post-contract customer
support revenues, transactional revenues, and hosted products revenues. Valuation multiples applied by the
Company for this purpose reflect current market conditions specific to the business unit and are assessed for
reasonability by comparisen to the Company's current and past acquisition experience involving ranges of revenue-
based multiples required to acquire representative software companies and the Company's overall revenue based-
trading multiple. In addition, in certain instances, the recoverable amount is determined using a value-in-use
approach which follows the sams valuation process that is undertaken for the Company's business acquisitions.
An impairment is recognized if the carrying amount of a CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of goodwill is estimated annually on December 31 of each year or whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

{if) Acquired intangible assets

The Company uses the income approach to value acquired technology and customer relationship intangible assets.
The income approach is a valuation technigue that calculates the estimated fair value of an intangible asset based
on the estimated future cash flows that the asset can be expected to generate over its remaining useful life.

The Company utilizes the discounted cash flow {"DCF") methodology which is a form of the income approach that
begins with a forecast of the annual cash flows that a market participant would expect the subject intangible asset
to generate over a discrete projection period. The forecasted cash flows for each of the years in the discrete
projection period are then converted to their present value equivalent using a rate of return appropriate for the risk
of achieving the intangible assets' projected cash flows, again, from a market participant perspective. The present
value of the forecasted cash flows are then added to the present value of the residual value of the intangible asset
(if any) at the end of the discrete projection period to arrive at a cenclusion with respect to the estimated fair value
of the subject intangible assets.

Specifically, the Company relies on the relief-from-royalty method to value the acquired technology and the multiple-
period excess earnings ("MEEM") methad to value customer relationship assets.

The underlying premise of the relief-from-royalty method is that the fair value of the technology is equal to the cost
savings (or the "royalty avoided") resuiting from the ownership of the asset by the avoidance of paying royalties to
license the use of the technology from another owner. Accordingly the income forecast reflects an estimate of a
fair royalty that a licensee would pay, on a percentage of revenue basis, to obtain a license to utilize the technology.

The MEEM method isclates the cash flows attributable to the subject asset by utilizing a forecast of expected cash
flows less the returns attributable to other enabling assets, both tangible and intangible.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and have finife useful lives are measured at cost, being
reflective of fair value, less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. Subsequent expenditures are
capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits that form part of the specific asset to which it relates
and other criteria have been met. Otherwise all other expenditures are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-ling basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets, other than gocdwill, from the date that they are acquired and available for use, since this most closely
reflects the expected usage and pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. To
determine the useful life of the technology assets, the Company considers the length of time over which it expects
to earn or recover the majority of the present value of the forecasted cash flows of the related intangible assets.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
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Technology assets 2 to 12 years
Customer assets 510 20 years
Trademarks ‘ 20 years

Backlog Up o 1 year
Non-compete agreements Term of agresment

Amortization methods, useful lives and the residual values are reviewed at least annually {or when there has been
an indication of impairment) and are adjusted as appropriate.

(iii) Research and development

Expenditure on research aclivities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge
and understanding, is recognized in profit or loss as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research findings are applied to a plan or design for the production
of new or substantially improved products and processes, is capitalized only if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible, if development costs can be measured reliably, if future economic benefits are probable,
if the Company intends to use or sell the asset and the Company intends and has sufficient resources to complete
development. To date, no material development expenditures have been capitalized.

For the year ended December 31, 2020, $575 (2019 — $505) of research and development costs have been
expensed in profit or loss. These costs are net of estimated investment tax credits, recognized as part of other,
net expenses through profit or loss of $28 for the year ended December 31, 2020 (2019 — $24).

{e} Property and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement

Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Cost includes initial and subsequent expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the related asset.
When component paris of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items {major components) of property and equipment, where applicable.

(ii) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in prcfit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an
item of property and equipment.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset Rate

Computer hardware 3-5 years

Computer software 1 year

Furniture and equipment 5 years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of the estimated useful life and the term of the lease
Building 50 years
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Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end or more frequently
as deemed relevant, and adjusted where appropriate.

{f) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories is based an the first-
in first-out principle, and includes expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories, production and other costs
incurred in bringing them to thair existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work
in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses.

{g) Unbilled revenue

Unbilled revenue represents the gross unbilled amount expected to be collected from customers for contract work
performed to date. It is measured at cost plus profit recognized to date less progress billings and recognized losses,
if any.,

Unbilled revenue is presented in the statement of financial position for all contracts in which costs incurred plus
recognized profits exceed progress billings. If progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognized profits, then
the excess is presented as deferred revenue in the statement of financial position.

(h} Other non-current liabilities

Other non-current liabilities consists principally of ceriain acquired contract liabilities, deferred revenue, provisions
and contingent consideration recognized in cennection with business acquisitions to be settled in cash, which are
discounted for measurement purposes.

(i) Impairment
(i) Financial assets (including receivables)

A financial asset not carried at fair valus through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determing
whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates
that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring
of an amount due to the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise, or indications that a
debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

The Company considers evidence of impairment for receivables at both a specific and collective level. All
individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant receivables found
not to be specifically impaired, together with receivables that are not individually significant are collectively assessed
for impairment by grouping together receivables with similar risk characteristics.

An impairment oss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the difference
between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's
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original effective interest rate. Losses are recognized in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against
receivables. When a subsequent eveni causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

{(ii) Non-financial assets

The carrying amounis of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories (which is addressed in note
3(f)) and deferred tax assets (which is addressed in note 3{m)), are reviewed at each reporting date (or more
frequently if required) to determine whether thers is any indication of impairment. [f any such indication exists, then
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated annually on
December 31 of each fiscal year or whenever required.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing the value in use, the Company uses discounted cash flows which are determined using a pre-tax discount
rate specific to the asset or CGU. The discount rate used reflects current market conditions inciuding risks specific
to the assets. Significant estimates within the cash flows include recurring revenue growth rates and operating
expenses. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of
the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets, which for the Company's purposes is typically representative
of the business unit level within the corporate and management structure. For the purposes of goodwill impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the CGU, or the group of CGUs, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying
amounts of the other assets (such as intangible assets and property and equipment) in the CGU {group of units) on
a pro rata basis.

Goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of an investment in an associate is not recognized separately and,
therefore, is not tested for impairment separately. Instead, the entire amount of the investment in an associate is
tested for impairment as a single asset when there is obiective evidence that the investment in an associate may
be impaired.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other non-financial assets, impairment
losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporiing date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization,
if no impairment loss had been previously recognized.

(i) Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be raquired to settle the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the estimated future cash flows required to settle the present obligation,
based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date. The estimated cash flows are discounted at a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The amortization of the discount is recognized as part of finance cosis.
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(k) Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the amount the Company expects to receive for products and services in its contracts with
customers, net of discounts and sales taxes. The Company reports revenue under four revenue categories being,
License, Hardware and other, Professional services, and Maintenance and other recurring revenue. Software
license revenue is comprised of non-recurring license fees charged for the use of software products licensed under
multiple-year or perpetual arrangements. Professional service revenue consists of fees charged for implementation
services, custom programming, product training and consulting. Hardware and other revenue includes the resale
of third party hardware as part of customized solutions, as well as sales of hardware assembled internally and the
reimbursement of fravel costs. Maintenance and other recurring revenue primarily consists of fees charged for
customer support on software products post-delivery and also includes recurring fees derived from combined
softwarefsupport contracts, transaction revenues, managed services, and hosted products.

Contracts with multiple products or services

Typically, the Company enters into contracts that contain multiple products and services such as software licenses,
hosted software-as-a-service, maintenance, professional services, and hardware. The Company evaluates these
arrangements to determine the appropriate unit of accounting (performance obligation) for revenue recognition
purposes based on whether the product or service is distinct from some or all of the other products or services in
the arrangement. A product or service is distinct if the customer can benefit from it on its own or together with
other readily available resources and Constellation’s premise to transfer the good or service is separately
identifiable from other promises in the contractual arrangement with the customer. Non-distinct products and
services are combined with other goods or services until they are distinct as a bundle and therefore form a single
performance ohligation.

Where a contract consists of more than one performance obligation, revenue is allocated to each based on their
estimated standalone selling price.

Nature of products and services

The Company sells on-premise software licenses on both a perpetual and specified-term basis. Revenue from the
license of distinct software is recognized at the time that both the right-to-use the software has commenced and the
software has been made available to the customer. Certain of the Company’s contracts with customers contain
provisions that require the customer to renew optional support and maintenance in order to maintain the active right
to use a perpetual or term license. The renewal payments after the initial bundled support and maintenance term
in these cases apply to both the continued right-to-use the license and the support and maintenance renewal.
Where the fees payable for the initial term are incremental to the fees for the renewal terms, the excess is treated
as a prepayment for expected renewals and allocated (amortized) evenly over the expected customer renewals, up
to the estimated life of the software that is typically 4-6 years.

Revenue fram the license of software that involves complex implementation or customization that is not distinct,
and/or includes sales of hardware that is not distinct, is recognized as a combined performance obligation using the
percentage-of-completion method based primarily on labour hours. The percentage-of-completion method based
on labour hours requires the Company to make significant judgments to determine the estimated hours to
completion which affects the timing of revenue recognized.

A portion of the Company's sales, categorized as hardware and other revenue, are accounted for as product
revenue. Product revenue is recognized when control of the product has transferred under the terms of an
enforceable contract.
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Revenue related to the customer reimbursement of travel related expenses incurred during a project implementation
where the Company is the principal in the arrangement is included in the hardware and other revenue category.
Revenue is recognized as costs are incurred which is consistent with the period in which the cosis are invoiced.
Reimbursable travel expenses incurred for which an invoice has not been issued, are recorded as part of unbilled
reveriue on the statement of financial position.

Maintenance and other recurring revenue primarily consists of fees charged for customer support on software
products post-delivery and also includes, tc a lesser extent, recurring fees derived from software licenses that are
not distinct from maintenance, transaction revenues, managed services, and hosted products,

Revenue from software-as-a-setvice (SaaS) arrangements, which allows customers to use hosted software over a
ferm without taking possession of the software, are provided on a subscription basis. Revenue from the SaaS
subscription, which includes the hosted software and maintenance is recognized rateably over the term of the
subscription. Significant incremental payments for Saa$ in an initial term are recognized rateably over the expecied
renewal pericds, up to the estimated life of the software.

Professional services revenue including installation, implementation, training and customization of software is
recognized by the stage of completion of the performance obligation determined using the percentage of completion
method noted above or as such services are performed as appropriate in the circumstances. The revenue and
profit of fixed price contracts is recognized on a percentage of completion basis when the ocutcome of a contract
can be estimated reliably. When the outcome of the contract cannot be estimated reliably but the Company expects
to recover its costs, the ameount of expected costs is treated as variable consideration and the transaction price is
updated as more information becomes known.

The timing of revenue recognition often differs from contract payment schedules, resulting in revenue that has been
earned but not billed. These amounts are included in unbilled revenue. Amecunts hilled in accordance with customer
contracts, but not yet earned, are recorded and presented as part of deferred revenue.

Costs to Obtain a Contract

The Company allocates incremental costs to obtain a contract (which principally consists of commissions) to the
various performance obligations to which they relate using the expected-based allocation (relative expected
margins) for bundled costs. For those performance obligations that are expected to be renewed at the end of the
initial period without a further commission (such as post-contract customer support), the Company has considered
expected renewals over the life of the intellectual property when determining the expected margins from the
arrangement. For performance obligations not delivered upfront, the allccated commissions are deferred and
amortized over the pattern of transfer of the related performance obligation. For commissions allocated to term-
based license arrangements and post-contract customer support, the amortization period is expected to be
approximately 4-6 years. Capitalized costs to obtain a contract are included in other non-current assets on the
consolidated balance sheet.

(I) Finance income and finance costs

Finance income comprises interest income, gains on the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets, and changes
in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Interest income is recognized as it accrues
through profit or loss, using the effective interest method.
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Finance costs comprise inferest expense on borrowings, amortization of the discount on provisicns, and impairment
losses recognized on financial assets other than trads receivables. Transaction costs attributable to the Company's
bank indebtedness are recognized in finance costs using the effective interest method.

{m) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or
loss except fo the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected taxes payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the period, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to taxes payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amaunts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. In addition, deferred tax is not recognized for taxable temporary differences arising on the
initial recognition of gocdwill,

Deferred tax is measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied o temporary differences when they reverse,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
liahilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but we intend
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized
simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits, difference in tax bases in the purchaser's tax
jurisdiction and its cost as reported in the consolidated financial statements as a result of an intra-group transfer of
assets and deductible temporary differences, fo the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

(n} Investment tax credits

The Company is entitied to botn non-refundable and refundable investment tax credits for qualifying research and
development activities. Investment tax credits are included within *Other, net” for items of a period expense nature
or as a reduction of property and equipment for items of a capital nature when the amount is reliably estimable and
the Company has reasonable assurance regarding compliance with the relevant objective conditions and that the
credit will be realized.

{o) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a compenent of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to fransactions with any of the
Company's other components. The operating results of all operating segments are reviewed regularly by the
Company's President and Chairman of the Board of Directors to make decisions about resources to be allocated
to the segment and assessing their performance.
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For fiscal 2019 and earlier periods, the Company aggregated CSl into two distinct segments for financial reporting
purposes; (i) the public sector reportable segment, which included business units focused primarily on government
and government-related customers, and (ii) the private sector reportable segment, which included business units
focused primarily on commercial customers. Following the guidance set out by IFRS 8, Operating Segments (‘IFRS
8", the public sector reportable segment was derived by combining the Company's Volaris, Harris and TSS
operating segments, and the private secter reportable segment was derived by combining the Company's Vela,
Jonas and Perseus operating segments. While the operating segments in the public sector were comprised of
businesses that primarily serve government and government-related customers, they also included businesses that
serve commercial customers, and similarly the operating groups in the private sector were comprised of businesses
that primarily serve commercial customers but also include businesses that serve government and government-
related customers. For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 approximately 35% and 30%
respectively of the revenue in the public sector reportable segment was generated from commercial customers,
and 15% and 16% respectively of revenue in the private sector reportable segment was generated from government
and government-related customers.

Each of the Company's operating segments operate essentially as mini Constellations, conglomerates of small
vertical market software companies with similar economic characteristics. Each operating segment CEQ is focused
on investing capital that generates returns at or above the invesiment hurdle rates set by CSI’s head office {primarily
the President) and the Board of Directors, irrespective of whether the acquired business operates primarily in the
public or private sector. Accordingly presenting information on a public and private sector bhasis is no longer
meaningful and the Company now aggregates the six operating segments into one reportable segment, consistent
with the objective and basic principles of IFRS 8.

{p) Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary shares, being common shares.
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareheclders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for treasury
shares held. Diluted earnings per share is determined by dividing the profit or loss attributable to shareholders of
ordinary shares by the weighted average number of shares outstanding, adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

(q) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations, including wages, benefits, incentive compensation, and compensated
absences are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability
is recognized for the amount expected to be paid and setiled under the Company's employee incentive
compensation plan if the Company has legal or constructive cbligation to pay this amount at the time bonuses are
paid as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(r) Leases

Atinception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on whether the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-
use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less
any lease incentives received. The assets are depreciated to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-
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use asset or the lease term using the straight-line method as this most closely reflecis the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits. The lease term includes periods coverad by an option to extend if the
Company is reasonably certain to exsrcises that option. In addition, the right-of-use asset can be periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's
incremeantal borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjusiment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. The Company
has elected to apply the practical expedient not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leasas of low value assets. The lease payments associated
with these leases is recognized as an expense cn a straight-line basis over the lease term.

4. Business acquisitions

(a) During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company completed a number of acquisitions for aggregate
cash consideration of $477 plus cash holdbacks of $112 and contingent consideration with an estimated fair value
of $39 resulting in total consideration of $628. The contingent consideration is payable on the achievement of
certain financial targets in the post-acquisition periods. The obligation for contingent consideration for acquisitions
during the year ended December 31, 2020 has been recorded af its estimated fair value at the various acquisition
dates. The estimated fair value of the applicable contingent consideration is calculated using the estimated financial
outcome and resulting expected contingent consideration to be paid and inclusion of a discount rate as appropriate.
For these arrangements, which include both maximum, or capped, and unlimited contingent consideration amounts,
the estimated increase to the unpaid initial consideration is not expected to exceed a maximum of $104. Aggregate
contingent consideration of $88 (December 31, 2019 - $59) has been reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position at its estimated fair value relating to applicable acquisitions completed in the current and prior
periods. Changes made to the estimated fair value of contingent consideration are included in other, net in the
consolidated statements of income. An expense of $5 was recorded for the year ended December 31, 2020, as a
result of such changes (expense of $9 for the year ended December 31, 2019).

There were no acquisitions during the year that were deemed to be individually significant. The majority of the
businesses acquired during the year were acquisitions of shares and the remainder were asset acquisitions. The
cash holdbacks are generally payable within a two-year period and are adjusted, as necessary, for such items as
working capital or net tangible asset assessments, as defined in the agreements, and claims under the respective
representations and warranties of the purchase and sale agreements.

The acquisitions during the year ended December 31, 2020 include software companies catering to the following
markets: advertising and marketing, asset management, automotive, aviation, communications, compliance,
construction, education, healthcare, hospitality, legal, logistics, industrial distribution, mining, moving and storage,
oil and gas, private clubs and daily fee golf courses, public libraries, real estate brokers and agents, retail
management and distribution, third party logistics warehouse management systems, creative agencies, textiles and
apparel, fleet and facility management, marine asset management, trade unions, school administration, distillery,
not-for-profit organizations, aerospace, rental, small and medium sized businesses, public safety, agriculture
equipment dealers, manufacturing plant performance, homebuilders, financial services, computerized maintenance
management systems, relail management and distribution, food and beverage, research management, transit,
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notaries, defence, customer loyalty, manufacturing design, local government, accounting, human capital, mining,
manufaciuring plant performance, agribusiness and utilities all of which are software businesses similar to existing
businesses operated by the Company. The acquisitions have been accounted for using the acquisition method
with the results of operations included in these consclidated financial statements from the date of each acquisition.

The goodwill recognized in connection with these acquisitions is primarily altributable to the application of
Constellation's best practices to improve the operations of the companies acquired, synergies with existing
businesses of Constellation, and other intangibles that do not qualify for separate recognition including assembled
workforce. Goodwill in the amount of $3 is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

The gross confractual amounts of acquired receivables was $83; however, the Company has recorded an allowance
of $4 as part of the acquisition accounting to reflect contractual cash flows that are not expected to be collected.

Due to the complexity and timing of certain acquisitions made, the Company is in the process of determining and
finalizing the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired as part of the acquisitions closed during 2020. The
amounis determined on a provisional basis generally relate to net asset assessments and measurement of the
assumed liabilities, including acquired contract liabilities. The cash consideration associated with these provisional
estimates totals $477.

The aggregate impact of acquisition accounting applied in connection with business acquisitions in the year ended
December 31, 2020 is as follows:
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Assets acquired:

Cash $ 97
Accounts receivable 79
Other current assets 29
Property and equipment 16
Other non-current assets 47
Deferred income taxes 3
Technology assets 346
Customer assets 290

912

Liabilities assumed:

Current liabilities 88
Deferred revenue 109
Deferred income taxes 95
Other non-current liabilities 44
333
Goodwill 52
Bargain purchase gain D
Total consideration 3 628

{b} The 2020 business acquisitions did not have a material impact to either the consolidated revenue or the
consolidated net income for the year ended December 31, 2020. The materiality threshold is reviewed on a regular
basis taking into account the quantitative {contribution tc revenue and net income) and qualitative (size and
comparability with other Constellation businesses) factors of current period acquisitions on both an individual and
aggregate basis.

5. Inventories

December 31, Decembei‘ 31,

2020 2019
Raw matcrials $ 11 $ 13
Work in progress 3 3
Tinished goods 13 14
Total $ 27 % 31
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No inventories were carried at fair value less cost to sell, and the carrying amount of inventories subject to retention
of title clauses was $nil as at December 31, 2020 and 2019,

Raw materials {(which consists primarily of hardware components) and changes in finished goods and work in
progress recognized as hardware expenses in the consolidated statements of income amounted to $89 {2019: $92).
The write-downs of inventories to net realizable value amounted to $5 {(2019: $4). The reversals of write-downs
amounted to $3 (2019: §1). Write-downs and reversals of write-downs are based on the Company's projscted

sales. The write-downs and reversals are included in hardware expenses.

6. Other assets and liabilities

(a) Other assets

December 31,2020  December 31, 2019
Prepaid and other current assets $ 115 % 9%
Investment tax credits recoverable 24 26
Sales taxreceivable 18 18
Equity securities held for trading 9 10
Other receivables 52 34
Total other current assets h 219 $ 184
Investment tax credits recoverable $ 12 % 13
Costs to obtain a contract 40 37
Non-current trade and other receivables and other assets 21 20
Equity accounted investees 2 2
Total other non-current assets $ 75 5 72
(b) Other liabilities

December 31,2020  December 31, 2019
Contingent consideration b 67 § 42
Deferred revenue 44 41
Other non-current liabilities 35 18
Total other non-current liabilities $ 146 % 101
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7. Property and equipment

Computer Furniture and Leasehold Building and

Computer hardware software squipment improverments land Total
Cost
Balance at January 1, 2019 by 59 29 4§ 26 $ 7 155
Additions 14 4 5 12 0 34
Acquisitions through business combinations 11 2) 2 2 2 15
Disposals / retiremenis ] ) (&) [G)] 3) {19}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange and other 0 [()] 0) 0 (0) 1
Balance at December 31,2019 $ 77 30 37§ 35 % [} 186
Balance at January 1, 2020 5 77 30 37 0% s 3% 6 185
Additions 12 3 6 4 0 25
Acquisitions through business combinations 5 1 4 4 1 15
Disposals / retirements (8} 3 (3} 2) (%)} (16)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange and other 9 6 2 1 1 18
Balance at December 31, 2020 $ 96 36 46 § 43 8 8 229
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at January 1, 2019 $ 34 22 JE 13 3 1 88
Depreciation charge for the year 18 5 ] 5 0 34
Disposals / retirements 6) (2) 3 ) [(0)] (14)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange and other {0) ) ()] 1 0 0
Balance at December 31, 2019 5 46 25 21 % 15 § 1 108
Balance at January 1, 2020 $ 46 25 21 % 15 % 1 108
Depreciation charge for the year 18 4 6 6 0 34
Disposals / retirements €] [&)] (3} [Q)] ()] (15
Effect of movements in foreipn exchange and other 7 6 3 (0) 0 16
Balance at December 31, 2020 $ 63 33 27 % 20 5 1 143
Carrying amonnts:
At January 1, 2019 ] 25 7 16 3 133 7 &7
At December 31, 2019 $ 32 5 16 3 20 8 3 78
At Janvary 1, 2020 3 32 5 16 8 20 % 5 78
At December 31, 2020 $ 33 4 19 % 23 3 7 86
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8. Right of use assets

The following table presents the right-of-use assets for the Company:

Computer Furniture and
Vehicles equipment Building Other Total

Cost
Balance at January 1, 2019 - $ 3 - $ - 3 - -
Adoption of IFRS 16 9 11 185 1 208
Additions 3 6 46 2 56
Acquisitions through business combinations 0 1 1 37 0 40
Disposals / retirements ()} (1)) 0y (&) (V)] (10)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange and other (0) [{U] 0 (0) [(1)] (0)
Balance at December 31, 2019 12 % 17 § 35 258 % 3 294
Balance at January 1, 2020 12 8 17 $ 3 % 258 § 3 294
Additions 4 7 1 42 1 35
Acquigitions through business combinations 1 3 0 37 o] 41
Disposals / retirements (N [} (0 29 [(V)] (33
Lffect of movements in foreign exchange and other 3 2 0 7 0 12
Balance at December 31, 2020 19 $ 27 % 4 % 315 % 4 369
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at January 1, 2019 - % - % - % - 3 - -
Depreciation charge for the year 4 5 1 48 0 58
Disposals / retirenenis (W) (] 0 (V)] 2
Effect of movements in foreign exchange and other 0) 0 0 0 [(}} 0
Balance at December 31, 2019 4 5 1 49 0 60
Balance at January 1, 2020 4 5 1 49 o] 60
Depreciation charge for the year 6 7 1 56 1 72
Disposals / retirements 4] 2 ()] (11) V)] {14
Effect of movements in foreign exchange and other 0 0 ) (1) 0 (0)
Balance at December 31, 2020 9 11 2 S4 1 117
Carrying amounts:
At January 1, 2019 - 3 - 3 - % - % - -
At December 31, 2019 8 % 2 % 3 % 209 % 2 234
At January 1, 2020 8 12 % 3% 209 § 234
At December 31, 2020 16 5 16 $ 308 221 % 251
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9. Intangible assets and goodwill

Technology Customer Non-compete
Assets Assets Backlog  agreements Trademarks Goodwill Total

Cost
Balance at January 1, 2019 $ 1,793 % 964 3 16 % 38 7 % 302 % 3,085
Acquisitions through business combinations 368 344 0 - - 59 770
Effect of movements in foreign exchange |3 1 0 0 ()] 0 10
Balance at December 31, 2019 3 2,169 § 1,309 § 16 § 33 78 361 % 3,865
Balance at January 1,2020 $ 2,169 § 1,309 $ 16 % 38 73 361§ 3,865
Acquisitions through business combinations 343 285 - - - 60 688
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 57 47 0 0 0 15 119
Balance at December 31, 2020 3 2568 % 1,640 § 17 $ 3% 8 3% 435 § 4671
Accumulated amortization and impairment losses
Balance at January 1,2019 b 1,124 % 391§ 16 % 3 4 2 % P 1,536
Amortization for the period 226 104 0 (0) 0 . 331
Iimpainment charge - - - - - - -
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 1 0 ()] 0 - - 2
Balance at December 31, 2019 ¥ 1,351 % 495§ 6 $ 35 2 % - $ 1,368
Balance at January 1, 2020 b 1,351 % 495 $ 16 % 3% 2 % - $ 1,868
Amortization for the period 261 142 0 0 0 - 403
Impairment charge 6 2 - - - 4 12
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 43 19 0 0 0 - 63
Balance at December 31, 2020 g 1,662 $ 659 § 17 3 33 3% 4 8 2,346
Carrying amounts
At January 1,2019 $ 669 % 573 % - 3 - b3 6 3 302 % 1,349
At December 31, 2019 $ 817 % 813 § © $ 0 % 5 % 361§ 1,697
At January 1, 2020 b3 817 % 813 § [ 0% 5% 361 % 1,997
At December 31, 2020 3 907 % 981 % o % 0% 5 % 4232 % 2325

Impairment testing for cash-generating units containing goodwilf

The annual impairment test of goodwill was performed as of December 31, 2020 and 2019. During the year ended
December 31, 2020, goodwill in the amount of $4 was impaired and expensed in the consolidated statement of
income (2019 - $nil). For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Company's business units
included in each operating segment, which represent the lowest level within the Company at which goodwill is
manitored for internal purposes. There was nc goodwill reallocated to the Company’s CGUs that was deemed to
be significant in comparison to the carrying amount of goodwill as at December 31, 2020.
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In determining the recoverable amount, the Company applied an estimated market valuation multiple to the
business unit's most recent annual recurring revenues, which are derived from combined software/support
contracts, transaction revenues, and hosted products. Valuation multiples, which are Level 3 inputs, applied by the
Company for this purpose reflect current market conditions specific to the business unit and are assessed for
reasonability by comparisen to the Company's current and past acquisition experience involving ranges of revenue-
based multiples required to acquire representative software companies. The Company has four CGUs whereby
the total goodwill allocated is significant in comparison to the Company’s total carrying amount of goodwill. The
total goodwill allocated to each of these CGUs as at December 31, 2020 is $28, $27, $27, and $27.

10. CSI Facility

On Decemnber 13, 2019, Constellation completed an amendment and restatement of its revolving credit facility
agreement (the “CSI Facility”), with a syndicate of Canadian chartered banks, U.S. banks, and a Japanese bank in
the amount of $700, extending its maturity date to December 2024. The CS! Facility bears a variable interest rate
with no fixed repayments required over the term to maturity. Interest rates are calculated at standard U.S. and
Canadian reference rates plus interest rate spreads based on a leverage table. The CS1 Facility is currently
collateralized by the majority of the Company's assets including the assets of certain material subsidiaries. The CSI
Facility contains standard events of default which if not remedied within a cure period would trigger the repayment
of any outstanding balance. As at December 31, 2020 $nil (December 31, 2019 — $65) had been drawn from this
credit facility, and letters of credit totaling $19 (December 31, 2019 - $21) were issued, which limits the borrowing
capacity on a doliar-for-dollar basis. Transaction costs associated with the C8! Facility are being amortized through
profit or loss using the effective interest rate method. As at December 31, 2020 the carrying amount of such costs
is $1 (December 31, 2019 - $2).

11. Debt without recourse to CSI

Certain of CSI's subsidiaries have entered into term debt facilities and revolving credit facilities with various financial
institutions. CS! does not guarantee the debt of its subsidiaries, nor are there any cross-guarantees between
subsidiaries. The credit facilities are collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the borrowing entity and its
subsidiaries. The credit facilities typically bear interest at a rate calculated using an interest rate index plus a margin.
The financing arrangements for each subsidiary typically contain certain restrictive covenants, which may include
limitations or prohibitions on additional indebtedness, payment of cash dividends, redempticn of capital, capital
spending, making of acquisitions and sales of assets. In addition, certain financial covenants must be met by those
subsidiaries that have outstanding debt.

Debt without recourse to CS! comprises the following:

Revolving Credit Facilities  Term Debt Facilities Total
Principal outstanding at December 31, 2020 (and equal to fair value) $ 25 % 209 $ 233
Deduct: Carying value oftransaction ¢osts included in debt balance (1 (5) (6)
Canrying value at December 31, 2020 24 203 227
Current portion 24 4 28
Non-cument portion - 199 199
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The annual minimum repayment regquirements for the term facilities without recourse to CSl is as follows:

Year Term Debt Facilities
2021 5
2022 4
2023 14
2004 2
2025 176
2026 7
209

12. Debentures

On October 1, 2014 and November 19, 2014, the Company issued debentures with a total principal value of C§96
for total proceeds of C$91. On September 30, 2015, the Company issued another tranche of debeniures
{collectively with the 2014 issuances called the "Debentures”) with a total principal value of C$186 for total proceeds
of C$214.

The Debentures have a maturity date of March 31, 2040 (the *Maturity Date™).
The interest rate from and including:

March 31, 2018 but excluding March 31, 2019 was 8.1%

March 31, 2019 but excluding March 31, 2020 was 8.8%

March 31, 2020 but excluding March 31, 2021 is 8.4%
March 31, 2021 but excluding March 31, 2022 will be 7.2%

Subsequent from and including March 31, 2022 ta but excluding the Maturity Date, the interest rate applicable to
the Debentures will be reset on an annual basis on March 31 of each year, at a rate equal to the annual average
percentage change in the All-items Consumer Price Index during the 12-month period ending on December 31 in
the prior year (which amount may be positive or negative} plus 6.5%. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the interest
rate applicable to the debentures will not be legs than 0%. The Company may, subject to certain approvals, elect
the Payment in Kind election {("PIK Elsction”), in lieu of paying interest in cash, to satisfy all or any portion of its
interest obligation payable on an interest payment date by issuing to each Debenture holder PIK Debentures equal
to the amount of the interest obligation to be satisfied. The PIK Debentures will have the same terms and conditions
as the Debentures and will form part of the principal amount of the Debentures. [f, on any interest payment date,
the Company fails to pay the amount of interest owing on the Debentures in full in cash, the Company will not {A)
declare or pay dividends of any kind on the Common Shares, nor (B) participate in any share buyback or redemption
involving the Common Shares, until the date on which the Company pays such interest {or the unpaid portion
therecf) in cash to holders of the Debentures; however, where the Company has issued PIK Debentures in respect
of all or a portion of the amount of interest owing on the Debentures on an interest payment date, the Company
may resume declaring or paying dividends of any kind on the Common Shares and paiticipating in any share
buyback or redemption involving the Common Shares beginning on the next earlier of (i) the interest payment date
of which the Company pays the amount of interest owing on the Debentures in full in cash and (ii} the date on which
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the Company repays all amounts owing under the PIK Debenture. All payments in respect of the Debentures will
be subordinated in right of payment to the prior payment in full of all senior indebtedness of the Company.

The Debentures will be redeemable in certain circumstances at the option of the Company or the holder. During
the period beginning on March 16 and ending on March 31 of each year, the Company will have ths right, at its
option, to give notice to helders of Debentures of its intention to redeem the Debentures, in whole or in part, on
March 31 in the year that is five years following the year in which notice is given, at a price equal to the principal
amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest up to but excluding the date fixed for redemption. During the
period beginning on March 1 and ending on March 15 of each year, holders of Debentures will also have the right,
at their option, to give notice to the Company of their intention to require the Company to repurchase (or to “put”)
the Debentures, in whole or in part, on March 31 in the year that is five years following the year in which notice is
given, at a price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest up to but excluding the date
fixed for repurchase.

During the periods ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, no notices for redemption of the Debentures
were received or given by the Company.

The fair value of the debeniures as at December 31, 2020 was $284 (December 31, 2019 - $286).

13. T8S Membership Liability

On December 23, 2014, in accordance with the terms of the purchase and sale agreement for the Total Specific
Solutions (“TSS") acquisiticn, and on the basis of the term sheets attached thereto, Constellation and the sellers of
TSS along with members of TSS' executive management team (collectively, the “minority owners”) entered intc a
Members Agreement pursuant to which the minority owners acquired 33.29% of the voting interests in Constellation
Software Netherlands Holding Cooperatief U.A. (*CNH"}, a subsidiary of Constellation and the indirect owner of
100% of TSS. Total proceeds from this transaction was €39 ($49).

Commencing any time after December 31, 2014, each of the minority owners may exercise a put option to sell ali
or a portion of their interests in CNH back to Consteltation for an amount calculated in accordance with a valuation
methodology described within the Members Agreement. Accordingly, the Company classified the proceeds from
the Members Agreement as a liability. The main valuation driver in such calculation is the maintenance and other
recurring revenue of CNH. Upon the exercise of a put option, Constellation would be obligated to redeem up to
33.33% of the minority owners' interests put, no later than 30 business days from the date notice is received, and
up to 33.33% on each of the first and second anniversary of the date the first redemption payment is made. In
determining the valuation of the liability at each reporting period, the Company assumes the minority owners
exercised their put option on the last day of the current reporting period, and redeemed 33.33% of their interests on
exercise (which is classified as a current liability}, and will redeem 33.33% on each of the first and second
anniversary dates. Maintenance and recurring revenue of CNH for the trailing twelve months determined at the
end of the current reporting period was used as the basis for valuing the interests at each redemption date. Any
increase or decrease in the value of the membership liability is recorded as an expense or income in the
consolidated statements of income for the period.

The seller of TSS also has an option available to it to sell approximately 68% of its interests in CNH, for an amount
calculated in accordance with a valuation methodology described within the Members Agreement, in the event that
Robin Van Poelje, TSS' CEO, is no longer employed by TSS. The remaining interest of approximately 32% can be
sold via the put option described above.
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In the event of a change of control in Constellation, the minority owners would have the option to sell 100% of their
interests in CNH for an amount calculated in accordance with a valuation methodology described within the
Members Agreement. Constellation would be obligated to remit payment in respect thereof no later than 30
business days from the date notice is given.

Commencing at any time after December 31, 2023, Constellation may exercise a call option to purchase all of the
minority owners’ interests in CNH, for an amount calculated in accordance with a valuation methodology described
within the Members Agreement. Upon exercise of the call option, the full purchase price will be paid within 30
business days of the notice date, following which the minority owners’ membership in CNH will be terminated.

If any of TSS' executive management team that participate in the Members Agreement are terminated for urgent
cause as defined in Section 7:878 of the Dutch Civil Cede, Constellation shall have the right to purchase all of the
interests bengficially owned by the {erminated executive for an amount calculated in accordance with a valuation
methodology described within the Members Agreement. The full purchase price will be paid within 30 business
days from the date notice is given, following which the terminated executive's membership in CNH will be
terminated. An option does exist for the terminated executive to elect o be paid in annual installments of 33.33%
of his interests in CNH over a 3-year period. The valuation of the interests being purchased will be calculated at
gach reporting period. During the periods ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, no options were
exercised.

14. Provisions

At January 1,2020 b 16
Reversal 3)
Provisions recorded during the period 21
Provisions used during the period (14)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange and other -1
At December 31, 2020 $ 20
Provisions classified as current liabilities 12
Provisions classified as other non-current labilities 8

The provisions balance is comprised of various individual provisicns for severance costs and other estimated
liabilities of the Company of uncertain timing or amount.

15. Lease obligations

The following table presents the expected maturity of the undiscounted cash flows for lease obligations as at
December 31, 2020:
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December 31,
2020
Less than 1 year $ 77
Between 1 and 5 years 172
More than 5 years 50
Total $ 2908
Less: Impact of discounting (23)
Leases obligation recorded on balance sheet 3 275

The expense relating to variable leass payments not included in the measurement of lease obligations was $7
{2019 - $6). This consists primarily of variable lease payments for property taxes. Expenses relating to short-term
leases were $9 (2019 - $14), expenses relating to leases of low value assets were $1 (2019 - $1) and sublease
income was $1 (2019 - $1). Total cash outflow for leases was $91 (2019 - $78).

16. Income taxes

(a) Tax recognized in profit or loss

2020 2019
Tax recognized in profit or loss
Current tax expense (recovery)
Current year 225 165
Adjustment for prier years (4) (1
221 164
Deferred tax expense (recovetry)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (70) (45)
Effect of change in future tax rates 8 3
Change in recognized temporary differences and unrecognized fax losses 22 7
Adjustment for prior years (15) {6)
(55) (41}
Total tax expense (recovery) 167 123

{b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
32



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(In millions of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts and as otherwise indicated.)
(Due to rounding, numbers presented may not foot.)

Years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

Net income for the year 438 333

Total tax expense 167 123

Net income before tax 603 456

Income tax expense using the Company's statutory {ax rate of 26.5% (2019 - 26.5%) 160 121
Impact on taxes from:

Foreign tax rate differential (14) 6)

Other, including non deductible expenses and non taxable income 10 5

Change in recognized temporary differences and unrecognized tax losses 22 7

Effect of change in future tax rates 8 3

Under (over) provisicns in prior vears (19 (7)

167 123

Constellation is subject to tax audits in the countries in which the Company does business globally. These tax
audits could result in additional tax expense in future pericds relating to historical filings. Reviews by tax authorities
generally focus on, but are not limited to, the validity of the Company's inter-company transactions, including
financing and transfer pricing policies which generally involve subjective areas of taxation and a significant degree
of judgment. If any of these tax authorities are successful with their challenges, the Company’s income tax expense
may be adversely affected and Constellation could also be subject to interest and penalty charges,

17. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

{(a) Unrecognized deferred tax liabilities

The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries for which we have not
recognized deferred tax liabilities is $756 (2019; $763) as the Company ultimately controls whether the liability will
be incurred and it is satisfied that it will not be incurred in the foreseeable future. The temporary differences relate
to undistributed earnings of the Company's subsidiaries. Dividends declared would be subject to withholding tax in
the range of 0-15% depending on the jurisdiction of the subsidiary.

(b) Unrecognized deferred tax assets

2020 2019
Deductible temporary differences, including capital losses $ 53 $ 56
Non capital tax losses % 374 $ 328

Non-capital tax losses of $203 expire between 2021 and 2040 and $170 can be carried forward indefinitely. included
in the non-capital tax losses expiring between 2021 and 2040 is $141 of losses that are not expected to be used to
offset future taxable profit as a result of legislative restrictions in the jurisdiction where those losses exist. The
deductible temporary differences and capital losses do not expire under current tax legislation. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognized in respect of those items because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be
available in those jurisdictions against which the Company can utilize these benefits.

{¢) Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

33



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{In millicns of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts and as otherwise indicated.)
{Due to rounding, numbers presented may not foot.)

Years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Assets Liakilities Net
2020 2018 2020 2019 2020 2019
Property, plani and equipment 8 8 [©)] @ 2 3
Intangible assets 104 89 (364) 327 1260) (228)
Resenes 20 18 4 (1 17 17
Non capital loss carmyforwards 32 28 - - 32 28
SREED expsnditura pool ] - @) - & -
Defemed revenue 20 26 ) 4) 16 22
Foreign and other lax credits 4] - (&) @) & %)
Other, including capital losses, withhalding tax and ferelgn exchange ) m B0 24y 270 (25)
Tax assels (Tabllities) 188 164 (418) (285) (233 (201)
Reo|assification (134) (11 134 119 - -
Met tax assets {llabilltias) 52 45 (285) (248) (233 (201)

This reclassification relates to the offsetting of deferred tax assets and deferrad tax liabilities to the extent that
they relate to the same taxing authorities and there is a legally enforceable right to do so.

{d) Movement in deferred tax balances during the year

Recognized in

Balance other Acquired in Balance
January 1, Recognized Inprofit  comprehenslw business December 31,
2020 or loss Income comblnations Other 2020

Property, plant and eguipment 3 (1 - - - 2
Intangible assets (238) 77 - (100) - {261)
Resenes 17 1 - - - 18
Non-capital loss camyforwards 26 6) - 12 - 32
SR&ED expenditure pool - @) - 1 - 8
Dafarred ravenue 22 3] - - - 16
Tax credits ) 1 - - - 5)
Other, including capital losses and withhalding tax (25) (2) - - - (27}

t201) 55 - &%) - (233)

Recognized in
Balance ather Acquired in Balance
January 1,  Recognized inprofit  comprehensive businass December 31,
2018 orloss incame combinations Other 2018

Property, ptant and equipment 2 - - 1 - 3
Intangiile assets (185) 55 . (108) 1 {238)
Resenes 12 4 - - - 17
Nor-capital loss carmyforwards 26 @ - 7 1 28
SR&ED expenditure paol 1 (1 - - - -
Deferred revenus 22 - - - - 22
Tax cradits (8) - - - - {6)
Other, including capital losses, withholding tax and forelgn exchangs {7 (&) {0) - 1 (25)

(448) 43 () {100y 3 (201)
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18. Capital and other components of equity
Capital Stock

At December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the authorized share capital of Constellation consisted of an
unlimited number of voting common shares and a limited number of non-vaoting preferred shares (there are no
preferred shares outstanding}.

Common Shares

Number Amount
December 31, 2020 21,191,530 S 99
December 31, 2019 21,191,530 $ 99

Accumulated other comprehensive income {l0ss)

Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss) is comprised of the following separate components of equity:

Cumufative translation account

The cumulative translation account comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations, as well as foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary
items that form part of the net investment in the foreign operation.

Amounts related to derivatives designated as hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on derivatives designated as hedges that are determined to be an effective hedge
are recognized directly in other comprehensive income, and the ineffective portion in the statement of income, The
gains or losses deferred in other comprehensive income in this way are subsequently recognized in the statement
of income in the same period in which the hedged underlying transaction or firm commitment is recognized in the
statement of income.

Dividends

During the three months ended March 31, 2020, the Company declared a $1.00 per share dividend to all common
shareholders of record at close of busingss on March 16, 2020. The dividend declared in the quarter ended
March 31, 2020 representing $21 was paid and settled on April 7, 2020. During the three months ended June 30,
2020, the Company declared a $1.00 per share dividend to all common shareholders of record at close of
business on June 19, 2020. The dividend declared in the quarter ended June 30, 2020 representing $21 was
paid and settled on July 10, 2020. During the three months ended September 30, 2020, the Company declared a
$1.00 per share dividend to all common shareholders of record at close of business on September 18, 2020. The
dividend declared in the quarter ended September 30, 2020 representing $21 was paid and settled on October 9,
2020. During the three months ended December 31, 2020, the Company declared a $1.00 per share dividend to
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all common shareholders of record at close of business on December 18, 2020. The dividends declared in the
quarter ended December 31, 2020 representing $21 were paid and settled on January 11, 2021.

A dividend of $1.00 per share representing $21 were accrued as at December 31, 2019 and subsequently paid and
settled on January 8, 2020.

19. Finance and other income and finance costs

Years ended December 31,

2020 2019
Interest income on cash $ 1 $ (3)
(Increase) decrease in the fair value of equity securities held for irading 0 (0}
Share in net (income) loss ofequity investee 0 1
Finance and other income 3) {2)
Finance and other expense (income) § 4 $ Gy
Interest expense on debt and debentures $ 32§ 31
Interest expense on lease obligations 9 7
Amortization of debt related transaction costs 2 1
Amortization of debenture discount (premium) and associated rights offering, net 4 )
Other finance costs 8 6
Finance costs $ 46 $ 42
20. Earnings per share
Basic and dituted eamings per share
Years ended December 31,
2020 2019

Numerator:

Net income % 436 % 333
Denominator:

Basic and diluted shares outstanding 21,191,530 21,191,530
Earnings per share

Basic and diluted $ 2059 § 15,73
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21. Capital risk management

The Company's cbjectives in managing capital are to ensure sufficient liquidity to pursue its strategy of organic
growth combined with strategic acquisitions and to provide returns to its shareholders. The Company manages its
capital with the objective of ensuring that there are adequate capital resources while maximizing the return to
shareholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Company consists
of cash, CSI facility, Debt without recourse to CSI, Debentures, TSS membership liability and components of
shareholders’ equity including retained earnings and capital stock.

The Company is subject fo certain covenants on its CSI facility. The covenants include a leverage ratio and an
interest coverage ratio. The Debt without recourse to CSl is also subject to certain covenants. The Company
monitors the ratios on a quarterly basis. As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company is in compliance with
its debt covenants. Other than the covenants required for the CSl facility and the Debt without recourse to C8!, the
Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The Board of Directors determine if and when dividends should be declared and paid based on all relevant
circumstances, including the desirability of financing further growth of the Company and its financial position at the
relevant time. The Board of Directors has adopted a policy io pay quarerly dividends, which commenced in 2012,
Constellation intends to declare a regular quarterly dividend to allow shareholders to participate in its free cash flow,
while retaining sufficient capital to invest in acquisitions and organic growth. There is no guarantee that dividends
will continue to be declared and paid in the future.

The Company makes adjustments to its capital structure in light of general economic conditions, the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets and the Company's working capital requirements. In order to maintain or
adjust its capital structure, the Company, upon approval from its Board of Directors, may increase or decrease
dividends, increase or decrease the line of credit or undertake other activities as deemed appropriate under the
specific circumstances. The Board of Directors reviews and approves any material fransactions not in the ordinary
course of business, as well as significant acquisitions and other major investments above pre-determined
guantitative thresholds.

22. Financial risk management and financial instruments
Overview

The Company is exposed to risks of varying degrees of significance which could affect its ability to achieve its
strategic objectives for growth, The main objectives of the Company's risk management process are to ensure that
risks are properly identified and that the capital base is adequate in relation to those risks. The principal financial
risks to which the Company is exposed are described below.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and interest
rates, will affect the Company's income or the value of its financial instruments.

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on the utilized portion of its CSI facility and its Debentures and does
not currently hold any financial instruments that mitigate this risk. If there was a 1% increase in the interest rate on
the Debentures, there weuld be a corresponding decrease in income before tax of $2. There would be an equal
and opposite impact if there was a 1% decrease in the interest rate.
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The Company is also exposed to interest rate risk on the utilized portion of the Debt without recourse to CSI. If
there was a 1% increase in the interest rate on the Debt without recourse to CSI, thers would be a corresponding
decrease in income before tax of $2. There would be an equal and opposite impact if there was a 1% decrease in
the interest rate.

The Company operates internationally, giving rise to exposure to market risks from changes in foreign exchange
rates which impact sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the respective functional
currencies of certain of its subsidiaries. The Company currently does not typically use derivative instruments to
hedge its exposure to those risks. Most of the Company's businesses are organized geographically so that many
of its expenses are incurred in the same currency as its revenues thus mitigating some of its exposure to currency
fluctuations.

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis:

Foreign currency risk arises on financial instruments that are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency in which they are measured. The Company's primary exposure with respect to foreign currencies is
through the Canadian dollar denominated Debentures (noie 12). The carrying value of the Debentures at December
31, 2020 is $223 (C$284) {December 31, 2019 - $222 (C$288)). If there was a 1% strengthening of the Canadian
dollar against the U.S. dollar, there would be a corresponding decrease in income before tax of $2. There would
be an equal and opposite impact if there was a 1% weakening of the Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company is not able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due or can do so
only at excessive cost. The Company manages liquidity risk through the management of its capital structure and
financial leverage, as outlined in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements. The Company's growth is
financed through a combination of cash flows from operations and borrowing under the CSI facility, Debt without
recourse to CSI1, TSS Membership Liability and Debentures. One of the Company’s primary goals is to maintain an
optimal level of liquidity through the active management of the assets and liabilities as well as the cash flows from
operations. The details of the Company's CS8I facility, Debt without recourse to CSI, Debentures, and TSS
membership liability are disclosed in note 10, note 11, note 12 and note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
As at December 31, 2020, available credit in respect of the Company's CSl facility was $681.

The majority of the Company's financial liabilities recorded in accounts payable and accrued liabilities are dus within
80 days. The Company also has payment processing liabilities which are settled within a few days of year-end.
included in cash is an equivalent cash balance of $12 (December 31, 2019 - $11) that is held to setile these payment
processing liabilities as they become due. Holdbacks payable related to business acquisitions are generally
payable within six months to two years.

Given the Company's available liquid resources and credii capacity as compared to the timing of the payments of
liahilities, the Company assesses its liquidity rigk to be low.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the financial loss that the Company would experience if a counterparty to a financial
instrument, in which the Company has an arnount owing from the counterparty failed to meet its obligations in
accordance with the terms and conditions of its contracts with the Company. The carrying amount of the Company's
financial assets, including receivables from customers, represents the Company's maximum credit exposure.
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The majority of the accounts receivable balance relates to maintenance invoices to customers that have a history

of payment. In addition, a large proportion of the Company's accounts receivable are with public sector government
agencies where the credit risk has historically been assessed to be low.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for accounts receivable at the reporiing date by geographic region was:

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
United States b 178 § 176
Canada 50 43
United Kingdom 63 44
Europe 155 126
Other 37 34
3 483 $ 422

The aging of accounts receivables at the reporting date was:

December December
31, 2020 31, 2019

Current
Gross $ 414 § 337
Impairment (1 n
Net 413 337
90-180 days
Gross 3 60
Impairment (2} (2)
Net 43 58

More than 180 days

Gross 53 55
Impairment 30 (28)
Net 22 27

Total accounts receivable

Gross $ 518 § 452
Impairment (34 (31)
Net 483 422
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An allowance account for accounts receivable is used to record impairment losses unless the Company is satisfied
that no recovery of the amount owing is possible; at which point the amounts are considered to be uncollectible and
are written off against the specific accounts receivable amount aftributable to a customer. The number of days
outstanding of an individual receivable balance is the key indicator for determining whether an account is at risk of
being impaired.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of accounts receivable during the year ended:

2020 2019
Aggregate balance at January 1 $ 31 § 27
Increase from business acquisitions 5 4
Impairment loss recognized 30 18
Impairment loss reversed (19 )]
Amounts wtitten off (11) (10)
Other movemernts ) €] )
Aggregate balance at December 31 $ 34 % 31
Allowance for doubtful accounts arising frombusiness combinations h 8 % 9

There is no concentraticn of credit risk because of the Company's diverse and disparate number of customers with
individual receivables that are not significant to the Company on a consolidated basis. In addition, the Company
typically requires up front deposits from customers to protect against credit risk.

The Company manages credit risk related to cash by maintaining the majority of the Company’s bank accounts with
Schedule 1 banks.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company and its subsidiaries have provided performance bonds and other
guarantees for the completion of certain customer contracts. The Company has not experienced a loss to date
and future losses are not anticipated; therefore, no liability has been recorded in the consolidated statements of
financial position related to these types of indemnifications or guarantees at December 31, 2020.

Fair values versus carrying amounts

The carrying values of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, dividends payable, income
taxes payable, the majority of acquisition holdbacks, debt without recourse to CS8l and the CSI Facility, approximate
their fair values due fo the shori-term nature of these instruments. Bank debt and debt without recourse to C5l is
subject to market interest rates.

Reconciliation of cash flows from financing activities

The following table reconciles the changes in cash flows from financing activities for the CSI facility, Debt without
recourse to CSI, TSS Membership Liability, and Debentures that is outstanding as at December 31:
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Debrt without TS5 Membership
CSI facility  recorse to CST Liability Debentures Lease linbility Dividends
Balance at January 1, 2020 % 63§ 200 § 221§ 22 8 230 § 21
Reclassification of deferred financing fees Fomother nssets 2 - - R - N
Increase (decrease) in revolving oredit under debt facilities without recourse to CSI - (31) - - - -
Proceeds fromissuance of term debt under facilities without recourse to €SI - 48 - - - .
Repayments of term debt under facilities without recourse to CSI - © - - - .
Increase (decrease) in the CSI facility ()] - - - - .
Payments of lease obligations - - - - (66) .
Dividends paid - - - - - (89)
Credit facility transaction costs - 2 - - - -
Total financing cash flow activities (65) 9 - - (65) (85)
Amorization of debt discounts and premiums - - - e - -
Amortizatien of debt related transaction costs - 1 - - - -
TSS membership liability revaluation charge - - 65 - - .
New leases, net of terminations and modifications - - - - 81 -
Dividends declared - - - - - 85
Foreign exchange loss (gain) - - - 5 1 ©)
Foreign cumency translation differences from foreign operations - 7 25 - g -
Total financing nan-cash activities - 2 4] 1 7} 25
Balance at December 31, 2020 $ - 3 227 3 311 8§ 23 % 275 % 21
Debt without 1TSS Membership
CSI Facility  recorse ta CSI Liability Debentures Leage linbility Dividends
Balance at January 1, 2019 $ - 3 154 % 184 § 215 8 - 8 21
IFRS 16 adjustment - - - - 216 -
Reclassification of deferred financing fees romother assets 2) - - - - -
Increase {decrease) in revolving credit under debt facifities without recourse to CSI - 5 - - - -
Praceeds fromissuance of term debt under facilities without recourse to €SI - 49 - - - .
Repayments ofterm debt under facilities without recourse to CSI - 6N - - - .
Increas e {decrease) in the CSI facility 85 - - - - -
Distobution to TSS minority owness - - an - - -
Payments of lease ebligations - - - - 58 -
Dividends paid - - - - - (509)
Credit facility transaction costs ) 2) - - - -
Total fimancing cash flow activities &5 50 nn - (56) (509)
Amortization af debt discounts and premiums - - - 3 - .
Amortization of debt related transaction costs [\] 1 - - M -
TSS membership hability revaluation charge - - 52 - - _
New leases, nel of lerminations and modifications - - - - 89 N
Dividends declared - - - - - 500
Foreign exchange loss (gain) - - - 10 . 0
Foreign currenay translation difterences from foreign operations - 5 (3} - 0 -
‘Total financing non-cash activities 0 6 43 7 89 509
Balance at December 31, 2019 3 & 0§ 210 % 221 % 221 § 250 % A

Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method.
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level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability either directly (i.e. prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

+ level 3 inputs are inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable markat data (i.e.
unohservable inputs).

[n the table below, the Company has segregated all financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
into the most appropriate level within the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used to determine the fair value
at the measurement date.

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value as at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019
in the financial statements are summarized below. The Company has no additional financial liabilities measured at
fair value initially other than those recognized in connecticn with business combinations.

December 31,2020 December 31,2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Levell  Lewel2 Level 3 Total
Assets:

Fquity securities held for trading $ 9 % - $ - 3 9 $ 0% - % - § 10
9 - - 10 - - 10

Liabilities:
Contingent consideration 5 . $ - 3 88 % 88 $ - $ - $ 5% % 58
- - 88 88 - - 59 59

There were no transfers of fair value measurements between level 1, 2 and level 3 of the fair value hierarchy in the
years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances to the ending balances for fair value
measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Balance at January 1, 2020 $ 59
Increase from business acquisitions 39
Cash recoveries {payments) (16)
Charges through profit or loss 8
Foreign exchange and other movements (2)
Balance at December 31, 2020 88
Contingent consideration classified as current liabilities 22
Contingent consideration classified as other non-current liabilities 67
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Estimates of the fair value of contingent consideraticn is performed by the Company on a quarterly hasis. Key
unobservable inputs include revenue growth rates and the discount rates applied (7% to 11%). The estimated fair
valug increases as the annual growth rate increases and as the discount rate decreases and vice versa.

23. Revenue

The following tables provides information about unbilled revenue (contract asset) and deferred revenue (contract
liability).

Unbilled Revenue;

2020 2019

At January 1 5 112 % 83
Increase from business acquisitions 9 11
Decrease from transfers to accounts receivable (327) (262}
Increase from changes as a result ofthe measure of progress 303 280
Foreign exchange and other movements 4 1
At December 31 b 102 % 112

Unhilled revenue classified as a current asset $ 98§ 110

Unbilled revenue classified as a other non-current asset 4 3
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Deferred Revenue:

2020 2019
At January 1 ¥ 828 § 700
Increase from business acquisitions 111 114
Decrease from revenue recognized that was included in the
deferred revenue balance at the beginning of'the period (728) (638)
Decrease fromrevenue recognized that arose from acquired
deferred revenue balances in the current year (69) (66)
Increase due to cash received, excluding amounts recognized as
revenue during the period 839 716
Foreign exchange and other movements 24 4
At December 31 3 1,005 § 8§28
Deferred revenue classified as a current liability 962 788
Deferred revenue classified as a other non-current liability 44 41

The amount of revenue recognized in the year ended December 31, 2020 from performance obligations satisfied
in previous periods was $2 {December 31, 2018 - $0).

Revenue allocated to remaining performance obligations represents coniracted revenue that has not yet been
recognized ("contracted not yet recognized”) and includes unearned revenue and amounts that will be inveiced and
recognized as revenue in future periods. Contracted not yet recognized revenue was approximately $2,300 as of
December 31, 2020, of which we expect to recognize an estimated 67% of the revenue over the next 12 months
and the remainder thereafter.

Cosis to obtain a contract with a customer:

The Company has capitalized and amortized incremental commission costs on a systematic basis, consistent with
the pattern of transfer of the good(s) or service(s) to which the commissicn relates as the Company believes these
costs are recoverable. The total capitalized commission costs as of December 31, 2020 is $88 (December 31,
2019 - $67). The amcunt of amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2020 was $16 (December 31,
2019 - $14) and there was no impairmeant loss in relation to the costs capitalized.

24. Operating segments

For fiscal 2019 and earlier pericds, the Company aggregated CSI into two distinct segments for financial reporting
purposes: (i) the public sector reportable segment, which included business units focused primarily on government
and government-related customers, and (ii) the private sector reportable segment, which included business units
focused primarily on commercial customers. Fellowing the guidance set out by IFRS 8, Operating Segments (“IFRS
8"), the public sector reportable segment was detived by combining the Company's Volaris, Harris and T3S
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operating segments, and the private sector reportable segment was derived by combining the Company’s Vela,
Jonas and Perseus operating segments.  \While the operating segments in the public sector were comprised of
businesses that primarily serve government and government-related customers, they also included businesses that
serve commercial customers, and similarly the operating greups in the private sector were comprised of businesses
that primarily serve commercial customers but also include businesses that serve government and governmenit-
related customers. For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 approximately 35% and 30%
respectively of the revenue in the public sector repoitable segment was generated from commercial customers,
and 15% and 16% respectively of revenue in the private sector reportable segment was generated from government
and government-related customers.

Each of the Company’s operating segments operate essentially as mini-Consteliations, conglomerates of small
vertical market software companies with similar economic characteristics. Each operating segment CEC is focused
on investing capital that generates returns at or above the investment hurdle rates set by CSI's head office {(primarily
the President) and the Board of Directors, irrespective of whether the acquired business operates primarily in the
public or private sector. Accordingly presenting information on a public and private sector basis is no longer
meaningful and the Company now aggregates the six opsrating segments into one reportable segment, consistent
with the objective and basic principles of IFRS 8,

Geographical information

The Company is managed on a worldwide basis, but operates in three principal geographical areas, Canada,
USA, and UK/Eurcpe.

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based on the region in which the revenue is transacted,
and intellectual property is located. Assets are based on the geographic locations of the assets.

Year ended December 31,2020 Canada USA  UK/Europe Other Total -
Revenue $ 493 $ 1730 § 1363 $ 384 % 3,969
Non-current assets 478 755 1,218 339 2,790
Year ended December 31, 2419 Canada USA  UK/Europe Other Total
Revenue $ 481 % 1,532 § 1,185 § 202 % 3,490
Non-current assets 472 710 968 275 2,425

Major customers

No customer represents revenus in excess of 5% of total revenue in both years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019.
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25. Contingencies

in the normal course of operations, the Company is subject to litigation and claims frem time to time. The Company
may also be subject to lawsuits, investigations and other claims, including environmental, labour, income and sales
tax, product, customer disputes and other matters. The Company believes that adequate provisions have been
recorded in the accounts where required. Although it is not always possible to estimate the extent of potential costs,
if any, the Company believes that the ultimate resolution of such contingencies will not have a material adverse
impact on the results of operations, financial position or liquidity of the Company.

26. Guarantees

(&) In the ordinaty course of business the Company and its subsidiaries have provided performance bonds,

(b)

(c)

(d)

letters of credit issued that do not limit the borrowing capacity of the CSI Facility, and cther guarantses for
the completion of certain cusiomer contracts and other contracts in the normal course of operations. The
total obligations of the Company pursuant to such bonds and related contingsncies total $85 (2019 - $72).
No liability has been recorded in the consalidated financial statements.

As at December 31, 2020, in the normal course of business, the Company has outstanding letters of credit
with the CSI Facility totalling $19 (2019 - $21) which limits the borrowing capacity of the CS| Facility on a
dollar-for-dollar basis.

In the normal course of business, some of the Company's subsidiaries entered into lease agreements for
facilities. As the joint lessees, the subsidiaries agree to indemnify the lessor for liabilities that may arise
from the use of the leased facility. The maximum amount potantially payable under the foregoing indemnity
cannot be reasonably estimated. The subsidiaries have liability insurance that relates to the
indemnifications.

The Company and its subsidiaries have provided routine indemnifications to some of its custemers against

liability if the Company's product infringes on a third party's intellectual property rights. The maximum
exposure from the indemnifications cannot be reasonably estimated.
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27. Changes in hon-cash operating working capital

Year ended
December 31,
2020 2019

Decrease {increase) in current accounts receivable b 21 % 10
Decrease {increase) in current unbilled revenue 24 (19)
Decrease (increase) in other current assets 20) (36)
Decrease (increase) in inventories 8 5
Decrease (increase) in other non-current assets 7 (6)
Increase (decrease) in other non-current liabilities 6 1
Increase (decrease) in current accounts payable and accrued liabilities,

excluding holdbacks fiom acquisitions 38 8
Increase (decrease) in cutrent deferred revenue 36 15
Increase (decrease) in current provisions (2) 4
Change in non-cash operating working capital b 117 % (28)

28. Related parties
Key management personnel compensation

The key management persannet of the Company, inclusive of the operating segments, are the members of the
Company's executive management team at the Company operating segments and head office and Board of
Directors.

Years ended December 31,
2020 2019

Salaries, bonus and employee benefits S 9 8 11
Total S g S 11

There were no significant post-employment benefits, other long-term benefits, or share-based payments attributed

to the key management personnel in 2020 and 2019.

29. Subsequent events

On February 12, 2021, the Company declared a $1.00 per share dividend payable on April 8, 2021 to all common

shareholders of record af close of business on March 16, 2021.

On December 18, 2020, the Company declared a special dividend pursuant to which all common shareholders of
record on December 28, 2020 of the Company were entitled to receive, by way of a dividend-in-kind, 1.859817814
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subordinate voting shares of Topicus.com Inc. (a newly created company) for each Constellation Software Inc.
share held. The dividend was distributed on January 4, 2021,

On January 4, 2021 (in anticipation of the acquisition of Topicus.com B.V. described further below)}, the Company's
subsidiary, Constellation Software Netherlands Helding Cobperatief U.A., which principally holds the TSS Operating
Group, completed a corporate reorganization. In conjunction with the reorganization, the following steps were
completed on January 4, 2021;

= (CNH changed its name toc Topicus.com Codperatief U.A. ("Topicus Coop™).

+ The Company exchanged its existing equity interest in Topicus Coop for an equity interest in Topicus.com
Inc. and Topicus.com Inc. became the new parent company of Topicus Coop. Constellation received
39,412,385 preferred shares and 39,412,385 subordinate voting shares of Topicus.com Inc. The preferred
shares are convertible into subordinate voting shares of Topicus.com Inc. at a rate of 1:1.

» Topicus.com Inc. had 39,412,385 subordinate voting shares outstanding on January 4, 2021. The Company
distributed 39,412,364 of the subordinate voting shares o ifs common shareholders pursuant to the
dividend-in-kind and continues to hold 21 subordinate voting shares.

» Constellation holds 1 super voting share of Topicus.com Inc. The super voting share entitles that number
of votes that equals 50.1% of the aggregate number of votes attached to all the outstanding super voting
shares and subordinate voting shares of Topicus.com Inc. As a result, Constellation Software Inc. controls
Topicus.com Inc. and will consolidate its financial position and results of operations and will reflect a non-
controlling interest held by other parties.

Cn May 20, 2020, the Company entered into a binding agreement, subject to certain closing conditions, with 1Jssel
B.V. (the "Seller’) to purchase 100% of the shares of Topicus.com B.V. {*Topicus B.V."), a Netherlands-based
diversified vertical market software provider. On January 5, 2021, the Company completed this transaction.
Annual gross revenues of Topicus B.V. for 2019 were approximately €101 million and total tangible assets at
December 31, 2019 were approximately €7 million. In connection with the acquisition the Company paid cash of
€133.6 million. Furthermore, Topicus Coop issued 5,842,882 preferred units of Topicus Coop to the Seller for an
initial subscription price of €83.8 million plus an additional subscription amount of €27.589 million which will be owed
by the Seller to the Company and will be repayable to the Company under certain conditions. Topicus Coop also
issued 5,842,882 ordinary units of Topicus Coop to the Seller. The aggregate estimated total consideration is
€217.400 million. The preferred units are retractable at the option of the holder for a retraction price of €19.08 per
unit and will be classified as a liability on the balance sheet of Topicus.com Inc. and the Company. The preferred
units are also convertible into ordinary units of Topicus Coop at a conversion ratio of 1:1 and the ordinary units are
exchangeable for Topicus.com Inc. subordinate voting shares at a conversion ratio of 1:1. The preferred unit
holders will also be entitled to & fixed annual cumulative dividend of 5% per annum,

On January 5, 2021, the Company cancelled the existing Members Agreement, and it was replaced by the Investor
Rights and Governance Agreement ("IRGA"). Under the IRGA, commencing any time after January 5, 2021, each
of the Minority Owners may exercise a put opticn to sell all or a portion of their interests in Topicus Coop back to
Constellation for an amount calculated in accordance with a valuation methodology described within the IRGA. At
any time after December 31, 2043, CSI has the right, at its option, to buy most of the Coop Units. Similar to the
Member's Agreement, the main valuation driver in such calculation is the maintenance and other recurring revenue
of Topicus Coop.
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COUNTY OF NASSAU
CONSULTANTS, CONTRACTOR'S AND VENDOR'S DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name of the Entity: Cogsdale Corporation

Address: 18 Great George St

City:  Charlottetown State/Province/Territory: _PE Zip/Postal Code: C1A 4J6

Country: CA

2, Entity's Vendor Identification Number. 98-0363498

3. Type of Business: Other (specify) _Corporation

4. List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of Directors or comparable
body, all partners and limited partners, all corperate officers, all parties of Joint Ventures, and all members and
officers of limited liability companies (attach additional sheets if necessary):

First Name Todd
Last Name Chman

Ml Suffix
Address 1 Antares Drive, Suite 400
City Ottawa State/Province/Termritory: ON Zip/Postal Code:  K2E
8C4
Country CA
Position EVP
T

5. List names and addresses of all shareholders, members, or partners of the firm. If the shareholder is not an
individual, list the individual shareholders/partners/members. If a Publicly held Corporation, include a copy of the
10K in lieu of completing this section.

If none, explain.

Harris Computer Systems, 1 Antares Dr Suite 400, Ottawa Ontario, Canada K2E-8C4

Shareholders repotts available at
https:/iwww.csisoftware.com/category/stat-fllings/2021/05/05/constellation-sofiware-inc-g1-2021-shareholders%27-
report

No sharcholders, members, or partners have been atfached fo this form.

8. List all affiliated and related companies and their relationship to the firm entered on line 1. above (if none, enter
"Noneg"), Attach a separate disclosure form for each affiliated or subsidiary company that may take part in the
performance of this contract. Such disclosure shall be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary companies not
previously disclosed that participate in the perfermance of the contract.

NONE

7. List all lobbyists whose services were ulilized at any stage in this matter (i.e., pre-bid, bid, post-bid, etc.). If none, enter
"None." The term "lobbyist" means any and every person or organization retained, employed or designated by any client
to influence - or promote a matter before - Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads,
Page10of3



legislators or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning

Commission. Such matters include, buf are not limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real
property subject to County regulation, procurements. The term "lobbyist" does not include any officer, director, trustee,
employee, counsel or agent of the County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties,

Are there lobbyists Involved In this matter?
YES | |NO | X

{a) Name, title, business address and telephene number of lobbyist(s):
[NONE |

{b) Describe lobbying activity of each lobbyist. See below for a complete description of lobbying activities.
[ NONE |

(c) List whether and where the personforganization s registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau County, New
York State):
[ The Organization s not registered as a Lobbyist \

8. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by & principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a
signatory of the firm for the purpose of exacuting Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to
hisfher knowledge, true and accurate,

Electrenically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Todd Ohman [CPLANT@COGSDALE,.COM]

Dated: 06/04/2021 01:17:09 PM

Title: EVP
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau County
Legiskture, orany member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local
legisltion or resolution; any determination by the County Executive to support, cppose, approve or disapprove any
local legislation or resolution, whether or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any
determination by an elected County official or an cfficer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement of
goods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including by not Iimited to the
preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or administration of a contract or with respect to the
solicitation, award or administration of a grant, loan, ar agreement invelving the disbursement of public menies; any
determination made by the County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards,
commissions, department heads or commitiees, including buf not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory
Comnittee, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real property
subject to County regulation, or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to
requests for proposals, bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the acquisition or disposition
by the county of any interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real property of or by the
county, or with respect to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or
rejeclion by an agency of any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any
rate making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determinaticn of a board or commission; any
detemination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing; the issuance, repeal,
modification or substanee of a County Execulive Order; or any determination made by an elected county official or an
officer or employee of the county to support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any
determination made to support or oppeose that is coniingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or regulation,
whether or not such legislation has been formally infroduced and whather or not such rule or regulation has been
formally propesed.
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No.: 2020-148-HARRIS

Certificate of Insurance

Dated: September 24, 2020
This document supersedes any certificate previously issued under this number

Named Insured.

Limits may have been reduced since Policy effective date(s) as a result of a claim or claims.

This Is to certify that the Policy(ies) of insuranece listed below ('Policy™ or " Policies'") have been issued to the Named Insured identified below
Tor the policy period(s) indicated, This certificate is issued as a matter of infermation only and confers ne rights upen the Certificate Holder
named below other than those provided by the Policy(ies).

Notwithstanding any requirement, term, or condition of any contract or any ether document with respect to which this certificate may be issuzed
or may pertain, the insurance nfforded by the Policy(ies) is subject to all the terms, conditlons, and exclusions of such Policy(ies). This certificate
does not amend, extend, or alter the coverage afforded by the Policy{ies). Limits shown are intended fo address contractual obligations of the

Certificate Holder:
NASSAU COUNTY

MINEOLA, NY 11501

NC DEPT, OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
240 OLD COUNTRY RD, 6TH FL,

Named Insured and Address:

CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC. AND COGSDALE
CORPORATION AND N. HARRIS COCMPUTER CORPORATION
3 LOWER MALPEQUE ROAD
CHARLOTTETOWN, PE CIE 1R4

This certificate is issued regarding:
ANNUAL MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT - FAMIS

Policy Effective/

Type(s) of Insurance Insurer(s) Nunber(s) [Expiry Dates| Sums Insured Or Limits of Liability
CONMMERCIAL GENERAL Chubb Insurance Company of 36045367 Sep 27, 2020 to | Each Occurrence TS 1,060,000
LIABILITY Canada Sep 27, 2021 %’E.rsonal& Advertising USD 1,000,000

njury
Products & Completed
Operations Aggregate 56 1,000,000
General Agpregate USD 10,000,000
Tenants Legal Liability USD 1,000,000
Non - Owned Aujo USD 1,000,000
Medical Expense TISD 25,000
TUMBRELLA Chubb Insurance Company of 78183369 Sep 27, 2020 to  { Each Occurrence USD 14,006,000
® Excess of Commercial General Canada Sep 27, 2021
Linbility paticy Aggregate USD 14,000,000
ERRORS & OMISSIONS Chubb Insurance Company of 36049367 Sep 27, 2020 to | Each Claim TSD 5,000,000
Canada Sep27,2021  Fpoprenate 3D 5,000,600
Self Insured Retention USD 1,600,000

Additional Information:

WITH REGARDS TO THE COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY POLICY, IT IS HEREBY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT
NASSAU COUNTY IS INCLUDED AS AN ADDITIONAL INSURED, BUT ONLY WITH RESPECT TO LIABILITY ARISING OUT
OF THE OPERATIONS OF THE NAMED INSURED.

Notice of cancellation:

Should any of the: policies deseribed herein be cancelled before the expiration date thereof, the insurer(s} affording coverage will endeavour
to mail 30 days written notice to the certificate holder named herein, but failure to mail such notice shall impose no obligation or (ability of
any kind upon the insurer(s) affording coverage, their agents or representatives, or the issuer of this certificate.

Marsh Canada Limited

120 Bremner Boulevard

Suite 300

Toronto, ON M5 0A3

Telephone: 1-844-990-2378

Fax: -

certificaterequestscanadai@marsh.com By:

Marsh Canada Limited

Mark Warren




REQUISITION

RQIT21000119 01/0UN/2021

VENDOR! REQUISITICNER:

COGSDALE CORPORATION IT DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECH

14 MACALEER DRIVE 240 OLD COUNTRY RCAD
6TH FLOOR

CHARLOTTETOWN PE ClE2A-1 MINEOLA NY 11501
S.BARNETT/MARY MAHONEY

TEL: {902)892-3101 TEL:{516)571~-3159

¥ax:{ ) - FAX:(516)571-3918

TTEM DESCRIPTION QTY U/M UNIT COST TOTAL

001 920-45 1.00 EA 124, 871.5400 124,871.54

COMPUTER SOFTWARE MATINTENANCE/SUPPCRT

QUOTE: MNO004109
ANNUAL RENEWAL OF FAMIS EXTENDED MAINTREWANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES
CONTRACT FROM 7/1/2021 - 6/30/2022
TECHNICAL SUPPORT SERVICES FROM MONDAY THROUGH FRIDAY, EXCLUDING
FEDERAL AND DOCUMENTED COMPANY HOLIDAYS, 8:30 A.M. TO 5:30 P.M. EST
BILL TO: I.T. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

240 OLD COUNTRY ROAD OTH FL

MINECLA, NY, 11501

EMATL T0: ITACCOUNTINGENASSAUCOUNTYNY.GOV

B R R T T T T T T T O A O AT AR AR

L R T R TR T T T T T T T T T O A A

ESTIMATED TOTAL: 124,871.54



PCHL9100 ADVANCED PURCHASING/INVENTORY 06/01/2021 2:93 PM
LINK TO: ELECTRONIC NOTE PAD PAGE ©1 OF 01

REQ DOC INQUIRY 2146

R N N T S R S R e e

A) ANNUAL MAINTENANCE & SUPPORT RENEWAL FOR THE FAMIS FINANCIAL SYSTEM
TERM: 7/1/2021 - 6/30/2022.
3%24,871.54

B
c .
D) NO. COGSDALE IS THE SOLE-SOURCE OWNER/PROVIDER OF THIS PRODUCT.
E n?gNTENANCE IS NEEDED TO KEEP FAMLIS UPDATED AND WORKING PROPERLY.
G) N/A
REFER TO P0IT20000246/RQIT20000016

F1-HELP  F4-AUDIT  F5-TOP F6 COPY F7-PR PAGE F8~NX PAGE
F9-LINK F10-SAVE  F11-INS PAGE F12-DEL PAGE  ENTER-INQUIRE  CL-EXIT
INQUIRY COMPLETE



i
COGSDALE

A divieion of fek HARRIS
Remit To: Cogsdale Corporation
62133 Gollections Center Drive
Chlcago, Il. 60693-0621
USA

L ud

BT To

MNassau County

Julie Mezzullo-Halme

Depariment of Government Services
1550 Franklin Avenue

Mingcla, NY 11601

LS,

Invoice MNOO04109
Date 4/30/2021
Page 1of4

Ship To

Nassau County

Julie Mezzullo-Halmo

Department of Government Services
1550 Franklin Avenue

Mineola, NY 11501

USA

Purchasa order No Custorner 1D, Salasperson |0 Shipping Mathod Payment Terms I

NASSO1 LOQCAL DELIVERY MN JUL I

g |
Qrdarad ftam Number Desc{igllcn Unii Price Ext Price

1.00 |PACG-FAMIS

NASS100) FAMIS; 7/1/2021 lo 6/30/2022

US5124,871.54

US$124,871.54

Remit Te: Cogsdale Corperatien

Wire structions - International Swift: BOFAUS3N; ABA/Routfing: 026009583
Bank Namae: Bank of America; Bank Address: Dallas, Texas 75283-2406
Benaficiary Name: Cogsdale Corporation; Account #. 44271056416
Beneficlacy Addrass; 400-1 Antares Drive, Ottawa, ON Canada K2E 8C4

[nvoice Quastions? Please call Mohammed Rushad Ali at §13-226-5511 ext. 3045 OR e-mail
MAli2@hamlscamptiter.com

Subtotal Us$124,671.54 ||
Misg US$H0.00
Tax USH0.00
Fraight us$e.o0
Trade Discount U550.00
Tolal USH124,879.54




www.cogsdale.com

3 Lower Malpeque Rood
Charlottetown, PE B1E 1R4

0: 80O 533 9630

May 19,2021

Nassau County

information Technology Division
240 Old County Road

&% Floor

Mineola, NY 11501

Re: Cogsdale Corporation’s Sole Source Justification for the FAMIS Financlal Management System
Dear Ms. Mahoney

This letter confirms Cogsdale Corporation is the sole-source provider of software support and
maintenance for the following oroducts currently utilized by Nassau County:

Cogsdale FAMIS Financial Management System

Product support includes functional and technical. Product maintenance refers to product updates and
upgrades.

If you have any further questicns, please contact our Director, Customer Success, Chris Plant
cplant@cogsdale.com

Sincerely,
Jor
Todd Ohman

Executive Vice President

rA
COGSDALE .



